NOTICE OF MEETING

CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 24th July, 2018, 7.00 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, Wood
Green, N22 8LE

Members: Councillors Isidoros Diakides (Chair), Dana Carlin (Vice-Chair),
Dawn Barnes, Barbara Blake, Eldridge Culverwell, Makbule Gunes, Mike Hakata,
Liz Morris, Ishmael Osamor, Alessandra Rossetti, Yvonne Say and Daniel Stone

Quorum: 3

1.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or
reported on.

By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings.

The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS (IF ANY)

URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.
(late items will be considered under the agenda items where they appear.

New items will be dealt with at item )

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Haringey



10.

1.

12.

13.

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is
considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B,
Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -6)
To consider and agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9" July 2018.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/178 AND AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT
(PAGES 7 - 12)

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2017/18 (PAGES 13 - 32)
DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 (PAGES 33 - 60)

COUNTER FRAUD UPDATE REPORT 2017/18 - QUARTER 4 (PAGES 61 -
70)

ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY (PAGES 71 - 106)
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

20 September 2018.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE

To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.



Philip Slawther

Tel — 020 8489 2615

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: philip.slawther2@haringey.gov.uk

Bernie Ryan
Assistant Director — Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ

Monday, 16 July 2018



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 6

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
HELD ON MONDAY, 9TH JULY, 2018, 19:00

PRESENT:

Councillors: Isidoros Diakides (Chair), Dana Carlin (Vice-Chair),
Scott Emery, Barbara Blake, Eldridge Culverwell, Makbule Gunes,
Mike Hakata, Josh Dixon, Alessandra Rossetti and Daniel Stone

1. FILMING AT MEETINGS
The Chair referred Members present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the agenda in
respect of filming at this meeting, and Members noted the information contained
therein.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS (IF ANY)
Apologies for absence were noted from ClIr Morris, Cllr Barnes and ClIr Say.
Clir Emery and ClIr Dixon attended as substitute.

3. URGENT BUSINESS
There were no Items of Urgent Business.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Carlin declared a non-pecuniary interest, as she sat on the APPCT Board as well
as the Homes for Haringey Board.

Cllr Rossetti also advised that she sat on the Homes for Haringey Board.

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS
None.

6. MINUTES
In response to a point of clarification, officers advised that there was an action during
the previous meeting for the 2018/19 Audit Plan to come back to the first Corporate
Committee of the new municipal year. The Plan presented to Members at agenda

Item 8 was a revised version of the plan presented in March 2018.

The Chair sought clarification around the action in the previous minutes around the
appropriateness of an additional ex gratia compensation payment, following the

Haringey



Page 2

Ombudsman’s report dated 31 January. The Head of Audit and Risk Management
agreed to look into this case and email the details to the Committee. (Action: Minesh

Jani).

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting on 22" March 2018 were agreed as a correct record.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2017/18

The Head of Treasury Management introduced a report which provided an update on
the Council’s treasury management activities and performance in the year to 31
March 2018, in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.

In discussion of the report, the following points were noted:

a.

In reference to local authorities being able to “opt up” to professional client
status under MIFID II, officers advised the Section 151 Officer would be a key
officer in terms of possessing the requisite professional experience to make
investment decisions.

In response to a question around the Council’s borrowing strategy, officers
advised that an increase in interest rates would not necessarily have an
immediate impact on the amount of money available, as most of the borrowing
that the Council undertook was done on a fixed rate basis. Officers also
emphasised that the borrowing costs were linked to gilt yields rather than the
Bank of England base rate, so an increase in the base rate would not
necessarily result in a commensurate increase in the Council’s borrowing rates.
Gilt yields were largely determined by market sentiment and confidence.

In response to a question about the potential costs involved with restructuring
the LOBO loans, officers advised that the lenders involved would have to agree
to repayment terms and that this would involve some cost to the Council.
Officers elaborated that there were 6 separate LOBO loans from 3 different
lenders and that 3 of these loans had review terms of 6 months, and the others
were between 2 and 5 years. The review term periods were fixed intervals at
which the lender could agree to increase the interest rates or the Council could
repay the loan in full. There may be circumstances where changes in interest
rates made repaying the loan and seeking alternative borrowing arrangements
financially advantageous to the Council.

In response to a query around what the Council’'s useable reserves were,
officers advised that there was £188m in total useable reserves however this
was a misleading figure as in included the HRA and schools.

In response to a query, officers advised that there were significant slippages in
the capital programme from year to year and that this was a primary reason in
explaining the reported level of borrowing headroom.

In response to a question about the difference between borrowing limits and
current borrowing levels, officers advised that the headroom was around
£116m for the Council as a whole and £78m for the HRA as at 31/3/18. Officers
cautioned that the Council needed to demonstrate prudential borrowing and
value for money when determining its investment activities.



Page 3

The Committee agreed that it would like to receive a special training/induction session
around treasury management for September. The Head of Treasury Management
agreed to arrange this. (Action: Thomas Skeen).

RESOLVED

I.  That Members noted the Treasury Management activity undertaken during the
year to 31% March 2018 and the performance achieved.

II.  That Members noted that all treasury activities were undertaken in line with the
approved Treasury Management Strategy; in particular, the prudential
indicators with fixed limits shown in appendix 1 of the report.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND STRATEGY 2018/19

The Committee received an updated internal audit plan, together with the internal
audit strategy, for review and approval. The Committee noted that it was responsible
for reviewing and approving the internal audit plan as part of its terms of reference.
Corporate Committee approved the plan in March 2018 but Members asked that the
new Committee be provided with a copy of the plan for information and ratification.
The Head of Audit and Risk Management introduced the audit plan and strategy
2018/19.

Following discussion of the report, the following points were noted.

a. In response to a question around how often school audits were undertaken,
officers advised that they were usually done on a four year cyclical programme
but schools that fell below the required level were re-assessed within 12
months.

b. The Head of Audit and Risk Management advised that he would bring a paper
which provided the Committee with information on the schools which had failed
to provide satisfactory audit assurance, to its meeting in September. (Action:
Minesh Jani).

c. The Committee raised concerns with the issue of overpayment of benefits, a
number of Members had significant concerns around housing benefit
administration and the impact that delays in this process had on their
constituents. The Committee queried whether the level of concern that the
Committee had around the issue could be better reflected in the amount of time
allocated in the internal audit plan for 2018/19. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management agreed to bring forward the audit of housing benefit and produce
a report to the Committee on this issue. (Action: Minesh Jani).

d. The Chair advised that Members could contact the Head of Audit and Risk
Management directly to discuss and feedback on some of their experiences
and concerns in relation to housing benefit administration.

e. In response to a query around the process for selecting which contracts were
audited, officers advised that they were largely selected according to risk
profile, reflecting the concerns and assurance needs of the organisation.
Officers acknowledged that there was also a wider point around contract
management being only one part of a wider procurement process and that the
audit plan needed to provide adequate assurance on the process as a whole.



Page 4

The Committee suggested that the wider process of contract monitoring was
going to be an important evidence base in determining any future programme
of insourcing.

The Chair sought clarification on what ‘new build properties advisory’ entailed,
as set out on the audit plan. In response, officers advised that audit had been
asked to input into a wider review and process of learning lessons following the
building of council houses undertaken by the authority. The Chair requested
that officers provide a briefing on this area of work and how the project was
being scoped. The Chair also requested that officers ensure that the Cabinet
Member was informed about this area of work. (Action: Minesh Jani).

The Committee raised concerns with the ability of HfH to adequately carry out
repairs and suggested that this contract should be included in the audit plan. In
response, officers advised that HfH had their own audit committee and audit
processes and suggested that it would be a more appropriate place to
undertaken this. The Committee agreed to have an item on a future agenda
around the ALMO and invite the MD of HfH to attend and submit a report on the
repairs service. The Chair also requested that the Cabinet Member also be
invited to attend the meeting. (Action: Clerk/Minesh Jani).

The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to provide a briefing to the
Committee on the audit process around HfH. (Minesh Jani).

The following additional areas were put forward by the Committee for suggested
inclusion on the 2918/19 audit plan.
a. Customer Services - The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to look

b.

in to this (Action: Minesh Jani).

Asset Disposal - The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to scope
this. The Committee suggested that it should cover the last 2-3 years. (Action:
Minesh Jani).

How much of the Council’s money was spent locally in Haringey to support the
local economy. ClIr Hakata agreed to email the Chair with further details on the
scope and specific areas involved. (Action: Cllr Hakata).

RESOLVED

That Corporate Committee noted the changes made to the plan since the start
of the financial year.

That Corporate Committee approved the updated Annual Internal Audit Plan for
2018/19.

END OF YEAR ACCOUNTS

The Head of Pensions gave a short verbal update to the Committee on the end of
year accounts.

The Committee was advised the Council met the 31%' May deadline for submission of
its draft annual accounts for the year 2017/18. The accounts were being reviewed by
the auditor and a draft auditors report would be presented to the Committee at its
meeting on 24™ July. Officers advised that the statement of accounts was also
published on the Council’'s website.



Page 5

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE
None.
11. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

24" July 2018.

CHAIR: Councillor Isidoros Diakides



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 7

Report for: Corporate Committee 24 July 2018

ltem number:

Title: Statement of Accounts (SoA) 2017/178 and Audit Findings Report
Report

authorised by : Jon Warlow, Int. Director of Finance

Lead Officer: Frances Palopoli, Head of Finance Operations Accountant

frances.palopoli@haringey.gov.uk 0208 489 3896
Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/Non Key Decision: Non Key decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To present the Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 following the completion
of the external audit.

1.2 For those charged with Governance to consider the statutory Annual Report
from BDO LLP which reports on their annual audit of the Council’s statutory
accounts, value for money and other relevant information

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable
3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Committee consider the contents of this report and any further oral
updates given at the meeting by BDO LLP.

3.2 That the Committee approves the Statement of Accounts 2017/18, subject
to any final changes required by the conclusion of the audit, being
delegated to the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the Chair.

3.3 That the Committee gives the Chair of the Committee and Chief Finance
Officer (S151 Officer) authority to sign the letter of representation to the
Auditor.

3.4 That the committee notes the Audit Findings Report of the auditors, BDO
LLP, and approves the management responses in the BDO LLP action plan
contained within that report.

Haringey


mailto:frances.palopoli@haringey.gov.uk

Page 8

4, Reasons for decision

4.1 Approval of the Council’s accounts is a non-executive function fulfilled by
the Corporate Committee; the audited Statement of Accounts must be
approved by the statutory deadline of 31st July.

5. Alternative options considered
5.1 None
6. Background information

6.1 The preparation and audit of the annual statement of accounts is a statutory
requirement of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. The
draft accounts must be prepared and certified by 31st May by the Chief
Financial Officer that it represents a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Council. This was done on 31% May 2018 according to the
revised statutory deadlines. These draft accounts are available for review
on the external website.

6.2 By no later than 31st July each year the accounts must be audited,
amended as required, considered by the appropriate committee responsible
for audit and published.

6.3 Since the draft accounts were published, a number of issues have been
identified that require changes to be made. These have been identified by
officers & the Auditors or arisen as a consequence of post balance sheet
events. Most are immaterial but take time to properly reflect in the
accounts. As such, we are not able to append the final SoA to this report.
We will circulate it to Committee members ahead of the meeting.

6.4 Due to the revised, more stringent timetable, the Auditors are also still
undertaking their review and the Auditors “Audit Completion Report” for
2017/18 will also need to be circulated separately ahead of the meeting.

6.5 The content of the Statement of Accounts is largely determined by statutory
requirements and mandatory professional standards as set out within the
“Code of Practice on Financial Reporting” published by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The CIPFA Code of
Practice is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

6.6 The Council’'s Provisional Outturn 2017/18 was reported to Cabinet in June
2018 and detailed a small overspend on the General Fund revenue budget
and an HRA underspend against budget of £4.011m. Following the
production of the draft accounts, a number of adjustments have had to be
made, as outlined in 6.3 above. These have largely affected the Councils
balance sheet reducing the general fund reserve by £0.5m and adjusting
the holding value of some of our assets. The changes will be reflected in
the auditor’'s completion report and an oral presentation of their findings will
be made to the Committee.

Haringey



Page 9

Statement of Accounts 2017/18

6.7 The Accounts show the financial position of the Council (the single entity

accounts) and also the “Group” which comprises the Council itself plus its
share of any controlled Companies. The Council incorporates Homes for
Haringey and Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust within its Group
Accounts. The following paragraphs give a brief overview of the statements
to facilitate navigation of the document:

a) The Narrative Report provides commentary on the financial and non-
financial performance of the Council, highlights most significant matters
reported in the accounts as well as looking at future developments and
challenges for the Council and key strategic risks. The narrative report is
not formally part of the Statement of Accounts and is not therefore
covered directly by the statutory requirements for an audit opinion.

b) The Core Statements comprising:

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (I&E) Statement shows
the costs incurred and income received in respect of the services
provided by the Council within the financial year. The I&E contains a
number of ,accounting” entries that are required to be made by the Code
of Practice governing the presentation of the accounts: and as a result it
is different from the standard management accounts reported to
Members through the year.

From 2016/17 a new financial performance statement was introduced,
the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA), to show:

e the income and expenditure chargeable to General Fund and HRA
balances; and

e adjustments required to prepare accounts on a generally accepted
accounting basis.

The objective of the EFA is to demonstrate to council tax and rent payers
how the funding available to the Council (i.e. council tax, housing rents,
business rates and central government grant) has been used in providing
services in comparison to those resources consumed in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. The EFA shows how the
resources have been allocated for decision making purposes. The EFA
is not a primary statement but has been included with the Core
Statements to give prominence to this important note.

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the money that the
Council had in its reserves at the beginning of the financial year, and
details the money coming in and out of those reserves resulting in the
closing balance on 31 March 2018. It shows the movement in both
useable and un-useable reserves including Earmarked Reserves.

The Balance Sheet lists the financial value of the assets and liabilities of
the Council as at the end of March 2018.

The Cashflow Statement shows movement during the year based on
cash transactions (rather than the accruals basis used in the CIES). As

Page 3 of 5

Haringey



Page 10

such, it explains how the Council’'s cash position has changed over the
course of the year.

c) Notes to the Accounts

The Notes to the Accounts provide more detail behind the figures in the
four main statements above and the EFA. The references on the
statements direct the reader to the relevant note(s).

d) Subsidiary Statements

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a separate ring-fenced
account showing the expenditure and income relating to the
management and maintenance of the Council’s social housingstock.

The Collection Fund is a separate account detailing Council Tax
collections (including those collected on behalf of the Greater London
Authority) and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) which, following
implementation of the Business Rates Retention Scheme, are shared
between the Council, the Government and the GLA.

e) The Pension Fund Accounts

The Pension Fund Accounts are separate from the rest of the Council’s
accounts and show the income (pension contributions and investment
returns) and expenditure (pension payments and fund management
costs) for the year together with the assets and liabilities of the Pension
Fund as at 31st March 2018. The Fund is audited at the same time as
the Council’s main accounts but is subject to a separate audit opinion.
The Pension Fund accounts and annual report will be reported to the
Pension Committee & Board meeting on 23 July 2018.

Also published with the Statement of the Accounts is the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS). The AGS sets out the governance structure
of the Council and, its key internal controls.

External Auditor’s “Audit Completion Report”

6.8 The purpose of the BDO LLP Report is to detail their findings and matters
arising during the course of auditing the financial statements. Due to the
revised timetable for producing the annual accounts, the report was not
able to be included as part of this documentation — but instead will be
circulated ahead of the Committee meeting. It will include key audit issues,
value for money conclusions and an agreed management action plan. The
Auditors will also make an oral presentation of their findings to the
Committee and will be able to respond to questions from Members.

6.9 Whilst the auditors have identified a number of amendments to the
accounts, there are no areas of dispute between the Council and the
auditors. The audit has been extremely thorough and we expect BDO to
highlight areas where improvements to controls could be made which would
further minimise the chance of mis-statement within the accounts for future
years. The Council will consider the points raised and, where agreed,
prepare an action plan to bring about those improvements.

Haringey



Page 11

Delivery of the action plan will be closely monitored and progress reported
to Corporate Committee.

Next Steps

6.10 BDO LLP are required to give their opinion on the accounts by 31st July
2018 so any outstanding work on the audit needs to be completed before
then.

6.11 The Chief Financial Officer and the Chair of the Corporate Committee
are required to sign a letter of representation to acknowledge their
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements and as
audit evidence on matters material to the financial statements. This will be
done as soon as practical but before the 31 July.

6.12 The result of this audit will be incorporated in the Annual Audit and
Inspection Letter which will be presented to the next Corporate Committee
in September 2018. It will then be made available to all Councilors and
reported to the Cabinet. The final letter will contain references to the final
opinion and a summary of the Annual Governance report issues.

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes
7.1 Good financial management supports delivery of strategic outcomes

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement
Included within the Report
Legal

The Statement of Accounts has been produced in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 and the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance (CIPFA) Code of Practice, industry best practice principles and
there are no areas of dispute between the Council and the auditors.
Accordingly, there are no direct legal implications arising from the report.

Equality
There are no equality issues arising from this Report

9. Use of Appendices
None

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
a. Cabinet Outturn Report July 2018
b. Closure of Accounts 2017/18 working Papers

All the above papers are available for inspection through Frances Palopoli, Head of
Finance Operations ext. 3896

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda Item 8

Report for: Corporate Committee — 24 July 2018

Item number: 8

Title: Annual Internal Audit Report 2017/18

Report

authorised by : Assistant Director of Corporate Governance
Lead Officer: Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management

Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Toinform Members of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control and risk management operating throughout 2017/18 and present
a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, including
reliance placed on work by other bodies.

1.2  This report also fulfils the relevant statutory requirements of the 2013 UK Public
Sector Internal audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017; the Local Government
Transparency Code; and the Corporate Committee’s terms of reference.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1  Not applicable.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Corporate Committee notes the content of the Head of Audit and Risk
Management’s annual audit report and assurance statement for 2017/18.

4. Reasons for decision
4.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible reviewing the Annual Internal Audit
Report as part of the required statutory processes.

4.2  In order to facilitate this, reports are provided on a quarterly basis to the
Corporate Committee on the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service in
completing the 2017/18 annual audit plan, together with reports on the
responsive and pro-active fraud investigation work undertaken during the year.

4.3  The report also supports the production of the Council’s statutory Annual

Governance Statement.

5. Alternative options considered
5.1  Not applicable.

Haringey


mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

6.2

6.3

6.4

8.1

Page 14

Background information

One of the terms of reference for the Corporate Committee is to consider the
Head of Audit and Risk Management’s annual report and a summary of Internal
Audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can provide
about the Council’s corporate governance arrangements.’

In addition, the mandatory PSIAS state:

e The chief audit executive must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and
report that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance
statement.

e The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk
management and control.

e The annual report must incorporate:

o the opinion;

o a summary of the work that supports the opinion; and

o a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the quality
assurance and improvement programme.

The 2015 Local Government Transparency Code requires the Council to
publish information annually in respect of its counter-fraud activities and the
resources used to undertake this.

The information in this report has been complied from information held within
Audit & Risk Management and from records held by Mazars Public Sector
Internal Audit Ltd (Mazars), the contracted provider of internal audit services to
the Council and relates to the work carried in the financial year 2017/18.

Contribution to strategic outcomes

The internal audit and counter-fraud teams make a significant contribution to
ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control throughout the
Council, which covers all Corporate Plan Priority areas.

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Mazars is part of the framework contract which was awarded to
the London Borough of Croydon and extended to 31 March 2024, in accordance
with EU regulations. The costs of this contract are contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

The report includes a number of estimates of the value of fraud uncovered by
the work of the team; the Council will always seek to recover this where
possible and in many instances this has been achieved. Even where full
recovery has not yet been possible, the investigatory work has prevented
further losses.

Two of the largest areas of activity concern housing — tenancy and ‘Right to
Buy’ fraud. The financial benefits to the Council of the housing tenancy fraud

Haringey



Page 15

work will be realised as properties are recovered and returned to the Council’s
portfolio. The Cabinet Office estimates that the costs of fraudulent tenancies
and unauthorised sub-letting equate to £18k per annum per property, mainly
relating to additional costs for temporary accommodation. Preventing fraudulent
Right to Buy applications ensures that properties are retained within the social
housing stock and discounts of up to £104k per property are not allocated to
those who are not entitled to receive them.

8.2 Legal
The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted in the
preparation of this report, and in noting that the level of audit coverage complies
with the mandatory PSIAS industry required standards, and that measures have
been put in place to deal with instances of limited or nil assurance reports, has
no comments.

8.3  Equality
The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to
have due regard to:

e tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (formerly
gender) and sexual orientation;

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not;

e foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and
people who do not.

As contracted providers of Haringey Council, the internal audit contractor is
required to demonstrate a strong commitment to equality and fairness in their
actions and work practices, and adherence to the Equality Act 2010. Ensuring
that the Council has effective internal audit and assurance arrangements in
place will also assist the Council to use its available resources more effectively.

0. Use of Appendices
Appendix A — Annual Internal Audit Report 2017/18

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Not applicable

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17 Appendix 1

Appendix A

Annual Report on Internal Audit Activity 2017/18

1. Role of Internal Audit

1.1 The requirement for an internal audit function is detailed within the Accounts
and Audit (England) Regulations (amended) 2016, which states that a
relevant body must: ‘Undertake and effective internal audit to evaluate the
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes,
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.’

1.2 The mandatory UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) are the
‘auditing standards’ which the Accounts and Audit Regulations refer to and
which the Council must comply with. Under these standards, internal audit are
required to have an external quality assessment at least once every five
years. Haringey’s audit was externally assessed in 2014, which confirmed that
the Council complied with the required standards; annual self-assessments
undertaken since this have ensured continuing compliance with PSIAS.

1.3 The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk
management processes, control systems, accounting records and
governance arrangements. The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the
Council to review, at least annually, the effectiveness of its system of internal
control. Internal audit plays an important role in advising the Council that
these arrangements are in place and operating effectively. The Council’s
response to internal audit activity and recommendations should strengthen
the control environment and ultimately contribute to achieving the
organisation’s objectives.

1.4 Internal Audit services for Haringey Council, excluding the investigation of
allegations of fraud and corruption, are provided by Mazars Ltd (Mazars) as
part of the framework contract awarded to the London Borough of Croydon.
The contract was retendered in 2017 and now runs until 2024 with a further
option to extend for 2 years.

2. Internal Audit Approach

2.1 To assist the Council in meeting the relevant audit standards and achieving its
objectives, internal audit provide a combination of assurance and advisory
activities. Assurance work involves assessing how well the systems and
processes are designed and working; advisory activities are available to help
improve systems and processes where required.

2.2 A full range of internal audit services has been provided during the year and
considered when forming the annual opinion. The approach to each audit
review is determined by the Head of Audit and Risk Management, in discussion
with Mazars and service management and will depend on: the level of
assurance required; the significance of the area under review; and risks
identified.

2.3 A report is issued for every assurance project in the annual audit plan, which
provides an overall audit opinion according to the seriousness of the findings.

Page 1 of 15



Page 18
Appendix A

In addition, each recommendation is given a priority rating, to assist service
management in prioritising their work to address agreed recommendations. The
overall classification relates to the findings at the time of the audit work. Internal
Audit undertake formal follow up work to ensure recommendations are
implemented.

3. Internal Audit Opinion

3.1 The Head of Audit and Risk Management is responsible for delivering an
annual audit opinion and report that can be used by the Council to help inform
its statutory Annual Governance Statement. The annual audit opinion provides
a conclusion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's
framework of governance, risk management and control.

3.2 In April 2018, a new Head of Audit and Risk was appointed, the period April to
December 2017 was covered by the outgoing Head of Audit and Risk and an
interim post holder covered the January to March period before the new post
holder started. The views of all three individuals have been considered as part
of hand over arrangements and in producing this report.

3.3 Internal audit work, using a risk based approach, included reviews of those
systems, projects, and establishments to discharge the Chief Financial Officer’s
responsibilities under s151 of the Local Government Act 1972; the 2013 UK
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; and the 2016 Accounts and Audit
(England) Regulations.

3.4 In providing the annual audit opinion reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
can be provided that there are no major weaknesses in the processes
reviewed. In assessing the level of assurance given, | have taken account of:

e Reports on all internal audit work completed, including any advisory work
and briefings to management;

Results of follow up exercises undertaken;

Any reviews completed by external review bodies;

The resources available to deliver the internal audit plan; and

The compliance with 2017 UK PSIAS.

4. Audit Opinion 2017/18

4.1 | am satisfied that sufficient assurance work has been carried out to allow me to
form a reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’s internal control environment.

4.2 1 have considered the work completed by both Mazars and the in-house
counter-fraud investigation team for 2017/18. This includes reviews of internal
audit reports, fraud investigations and briefings to management. In my opinion,
with the exception of those areas where ‘limited’ or ‘nil’ assurance reports have
been issued, the controls in place in those areas reviewed are adequate and
effective.

Page 2 of 15



Page 19
Appendix A

4.3 Where weaknesses in controls have been identified, internal audit has worked
with  management to agree appropriate actions and timescales for
implementation. Internal Audit will undertake follow up reviews or further audit
work to confirm their implementation.

4.4 In my opinion, the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and
management control is adequate and audit work has found controls to be
generally effective. Issues arising from internal audit's work which have
significant implications for the Council’s control and assurance framework have
been included in the Annual Governance Statement, which is reported
separately to the Corporate Committee.

4.5 The control environment at Osborne Grove was an area of significant concern
during the year. Osbourne Grove is a Council run Nursing Home in Stroud
Green. We visited the establishment following an adverse CQC report and
subsequently issued a No Assurance report. Management took swift action to
rectify the issues identified and on a follow up visit no recommendation
remained outstanding.

4.6 Analysis of recommendations raised in service focus reviews shows that a
significant proportion of recommendations raised relate to organisation controls
highlighting staff are aware of their responsibilities and such responsibilities
being appropriately discharged. This includes such issues as out of date
policies, procedures and guidance, poor record keeping, failure to keep service
user data and service assessments up to date, poor training provision and a
lack of up to date job descriptions.

4.7 Further actions to enhance the governance framework, where controls were not

fully implemented in 2017/18 included:

e The need to review and refresh the Human Resources policies and present
to Standards and Remuneration Committee;

e Finalisation of the Adults safeguarding protocols;

e The need to establish a database of all consultation responses which is
accessible on the council’s website; and

e Updating the Local Code of Corporate Governance. A significant amount of
work has been carried out in this area and the code will be finalised shortly.

4.8 We reported last year that the control environment in Haringey’s schools
required improvement. While this year our schools visits have indicated an
improvement with fewer schools assessed as limited or no assurance opinion,
some schools are still a cause for concern. This includes one school were a No
Assurance report has been issued for two years in a row. Work continues to be
undertaken in conjunction with the Schools Forum and Children’s Services to
assist schools and reduce the potential risks. A summary of outcomes for
2017/18 is as follows:

e 11 schools received a ‘substantial’ assurance rating; (2016/17 -9)
e Seven schools received a ‘limited’ assurance rating (2016/17 — 13); and
e Two schools received a ‘nil’ assurance rating (2016/17 3).

Page 3 of 15



Page 20
Appendix A

5. Internal Audit Coverage and Output

5.1 The 2017/18 audit plan was informed by internal audit's own assessment of the
Council’'s key risk areas and discussions with Priority Owners and senior
management to ensure that audit resources were aligned to agreed areas of
risk. A small contingency was included in the audit plan to ensure any emerging
risks during the year could be adequately reviewed. Work has been planned
and performed in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the internal control
system is operating effectively.

5.2 The original plan for 2017/18 included 55 projects, including schools audits,
and was approved by the Corporate Committee on 21 March 2017. Internal
audit liaised closely with Priority Owners and senior managers during the year
to ensure that audits planned continue to focus on high risk areas in light of
emerging risks and changes to operational processes.

5.3 As a result of ongoing liaison and review of risks, some changes were made to
the original plan during the year as follows:

Number of projects as per the original plan 55
Audits added to the plan 4
Cancelled audits 4

Audits deferred to 2018/19 1
Total number as per the revised plan 54

5.4 Most of the audit work was geared towards providing assurance to
management on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal
control environment. This work provided an outcome report with an assurance
rating. Other work provided advice and support to management to improve
efficiency, or the effectiveness of systems, services or functions; in these cases
an outcome report or assurance rating is not provided.

5.5 Resources to complete follow up work are also included in the annual audit
plan, including formal follow up reports for schools. The results of the follow up
reviews were reported to the Corporate Committee throughout 2017/18.

5.6 The 2017/18 internal audit plan was substantially completed with the following
exceptions:
e Fieldwork was in progress for 11 review at 31 March 2017; and
e Two audits had been postponed at management request to commence
after 31%' March 2018.
| do not consider these exceptions to have an adverse impact on providing my
overall opinion for 2017/18.

5.7 Including follow up work and resources to support work, which did not result in

a formal report, Mazars have delivered 98% of the planned audit work; this
meets the agreed performance indicator of a 95% completion rate.

Page 4 of 15



Page 21
Appendix A

5.8 The following table indicates the audits completed and levels of assurance
provided for the 2017/18 audit plan. Four audits reports were still to be issued
as final.

Table 1 — Number of reports issued by assurance level

Assurance Level Number of Reports Issued

Full Assurance 0
Substantial Assurance 27
Limited Assurance 16

3
Advisory work completed 4
Final reports to be issued 4
Total 54

Assurance Definition:

Full Assurance: There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the
system objectives.

Substantial Assurance: There is basically a sound system, but there are
weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put

the system obijectives at risk.
ﬂ: Control is generally weak leaving the system open to

significant error or abuse.

5.9 Key financial systems - In 2016/17, it was agreed with the Chief Operating
Officer and system managers that audits of the key financial systems at the
year end did not provide ongoing assurance throughout the year. Previous
years’ audits had not highlighted any significant control weaknesses in the key
financial systems and no high priority recommendations remained outstanding.
Internal audit agreed to work with senior managers to develop a continuous
audit approach during 2017/18 which provided feedback on the management
of key risks and controls on a more regular, quarterly basis. The key risks and
test programmes have now been agreed and initial findings have been
reported to managers on an on-going basis; no significant control issues were
raised.

5.10The level of audit coverage provided in 2017/18 is satisfactory and complies

with the requirements of the mandatory UK Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS).

Page 5 of 15



Page 22

Appendix A

Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 — Summary of Audit Recommendations and
Assurance Ratings

Ref. | Audit area Assurance P1 P2 P3 Status
Level Recs. | Recs. | Recs.
CORPORATE RISK AUDITS
1 | HR processes - IR35 Substantial 0 1 1 Final
implementation and exit
payments.
2 | Declaration of Interests. Substantial 0 3 3 Final
3 | Information governance — data Limited 2 7 0 Final
storage arrangements (electronic
and physical).
Priority 1 — Outstanding for all
(Children Services)
4 | High Needs Block funding — - - - - -
postponed at management
request.
5 | Looked after children/care leavers - - - - -
- high cost placements
postponed at management
request.
6 | Early Help processes Substantial 0 2 0 Final
7 | Children’s Centres — safeguarding | Substantial 1 2 0 Draft
and financial processes
8 | No Recourse to Public Funds Limited 0 8 0 Final
(including refugee/asylum
seekers).
School Admissions — policy and - - - - -
operational processes.
postponed at management
request.
Priority 2 — Outstanding for all
(Adult Social Services)
9 | Discharge to Assess Substantial 0 2 0 Final
10 [ Osborne Grove N 11 11 2 Final
11 | Direct Payments Limited 1 6 1 Final
12 | Community Alarm Service Limited 4 7 1 Final
13 | Safeguarding Substantial 0 4 1 Final
14 | Reviews for independence Substantial 0 2 1 Final
15 | The A Team Limited 7 11 2 Final

Page 6 of 15




Page 23

Appendix A
Ref. | Audit area Assurance P1 P2 P3 Status
Level Recs. | Recs. | Recs.
Priority 3 — Clean and Safe
(Environmental Services &
Community Safety)
15 | Capital and project expenditure Advisory 0 8 1 Final
and procurement processes
Highways — contractor invoicing Substantial 0 1 1 Final
and monitoring
16 | Reactive maintenance Substantial 1 0 1 Final
18 | Operational Services — Budget Substantial 0 2 0 Final
allocation and management
Priority 4 — Sustainable
Housing Growth and
Employment (Regeneration)
19 | Haringey Development Vehicle — Advisory N/A N/A N/A Final
strategic partner/operating
processes
20 | Estate Renewal — re-housing and | Substantial 0 4 0 Final
payments
CORPORATE IT AUDIT:
21 | Shared digital — contract Substantial 0 2 2 Final
management
22 | Project management processes — - - - -
postponed by management
request.
23 | Mosaic application Substantial 0 0 2 Final
24 | ICON application upgrade Substantial 0 2 0 Final
CONTRACT AND
PROCUREMENT:
25 | Provision of pharmacies Substantial 0 3 0 Final
enhanced service (framework)
26 | Master vendor for supply of Substantial 0 4 0 Final
agency staff
27 | Contract extensions/waivers. Limited 1 2 0 Final
28 | Operational procurement Limited 1 5 1 Final
processes
KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS
Strategic Financial Management & N/A - - - Continuous
Budgetary Control
Cash Receipting N/A - - - Continuous
Treasury Management N/A - - - Continuous
Accounting & General Ledger N/A - - - Continuous
Accounts Payable (Creditors) N/A - - - Continuous
29 | Pension Fund Substantial 0 0 2 Final

Page 7 of 15




Page 24

Appendix A
Ref. | Audit area Assurance P1 P2 P3 Status
Level Recs. | Recs. | Recs.

Accounts Receivable (Sundry N/A - - - Continuous

Debtors)

Housing Benefits N/A - - - Continuous

Council Tax N/A - - - Continuous

NNDR N/A - - - Continuous

Payroll N/A - - - Continuous
30 | Teachers’ Pensions contributions Grant - - - Final

certification

School Audits

Primary Schools
31 | Alexandra Substantial 0 4 4 Final
32 | Bounds Green Substantial 0 0 4 Final
33 | Bruce Grove Limited 3 9 5 Final
34 [ Chestnuts NG 10 10 1 Final
35 | Coldfall Substantial 0 4 0 Final
36 | Crowland Limited 3 14 1 Final
37 | Ferry Lane Limited 1 6 4 Final
38 | Lancasterian Limited 0 10 4 Final
39 | Mulberry Substantial 0 4 0 Final
40 | Rhodes Avenue Substantial 0 4 2 Final
41 | St Martin of Porres RC Substantial 0 6 2 Final
42 | St Mary CE Substantial 0 6 1 Final
43 | St Paul's RC Substantial 0 5 2 Final
44 | Stamford Hill NN 6 13 2 Final
45 | Stroud Green Limited 4 7 4 Final
46 | Tiverton Substantial 0 7 2 Final
47 | Welbourne Substantial 0 6 7 Final

Infants Schools
48 | Rokesly Infants Limited 0 5 5 Final
49 | St Peter in Chains Limited 1 9 1 Final

Secondary Schools
50 | Highgate Wood Substantial 1 3 0 Final

Ad-hoc Work:
51 | High Road West** Substantial 0 1 0 Final
52 | Oakmont (19 plus)** Limited 0 3 1 Draft
53 | Residents Permits** Limited 0 8 1 Final
54 | Headteachers Pay** Advisory N/A N/A N/A Final

**Four reviews added to the 2017/18 plan at the request of Priority Owners

2017/18 - Audits Deferred and Cancelled

Page 8 of 15




Page 25

Appendix A

Audit area

Reason audit not undertaken

Information Governance — Data Protection
and GDPR preparations

Deferred to 2018/19 to allow new processes
and systems to be embedded

High Needs Block Funding

Deferred to Quarter 4 2017/18 to Quarter 1
2018/19.

Looked after Children / Care leavers — High
cost Placements

Deferred to Quarter 4 2017/18 to Quarter 1
2018/19.

School Admissions — Policy and Operational
Procedures

Deferred to Quarter 4 2017/18 to Quarter 1
2018/19.

Page 9 of 15




Page 26
Appendix A

Counter-fraud work 2017/18

1. Introduction

1.1Haringey Council is committed to ensuring the highest possible standards are
maintained by its staff, contractors and residents. Fraud and corruption can
impact on the public’s confidence in the Council and its reputation in the long
term. Counter-fraud policies and strategies are in place to detect and prevent
fraud and a corporate Fraud Team is managed by the Head of Audit and Risk
Management.

2. Transparency Code 2015

2.11n accordance with Part 2 of the Local Government Transparency Code 2015,
Haringey is required to publish information on the cost of its counter-fraud work
and the outcomes achieved. Details of the required information and the Fraud
Team’s involvement in counter-fraud work during 2017/18 is summarised
below:

Table 2 Transparency Code reporting — costs and fraud cases 2017/18

Transparency Code requirement 2017/18
Allocated budget for counter-fraud work £685k
Number of staff (absolute and FTE) undertaking

counter-fraud work 8 staff: 8.0 FTE
Number of staff of professionally accredited counter-

fraud specialists 5 staff
Total amount of time spent on the investigation and

prosecution of fraud 1,463 days
Total number of fraud cases investigated 842
Number of occasions powers under the Prevention of

Social Housing Fraud Regulations have been used 48

2.2 The Transparency Code also requires a breakdown of the 842 fraud cases
(identified in Table 2) investigated during 2017/18. This detail is summarised in
Table 3 below:

Table 3 Transparency Code reporting — investigations completed by type

Number of
Investigation area investigations

Right to Buy applications 280
Tenancy fraud 142
Pro-active tenancy checks 148
Gas Safety tenancy checks 170
Employee fraud cases 21
No Recourse to Public Funds 81

Total 842

3. Internal Employee Investigations

Page 10 of 15



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.

Page 27
Appendix A

During 2017/8, eighteen (18) investigations were completed involving council
employees. The allegations covered a number of issues including misuse of
position, misuse of council resources, misuse of blue badge, tenancy fraud,
dishonesty and one case of ‘no right to work in the UK. The number of
investigations completed by directorate is shown below. The number of
investigations in total is consistent with previous year’s work.

In all 18 investigations, the Head of Audit and Risk Management issued an
Irregularity Report to service management; which identified the relevant breach
of the Council’s Code of Conduct and recommended:

0] Disciplinary action be taken in accordance with Council procedures
and /or

(i) Changes to policy, practice or procedure to mitigate similar
occurrences.

In eight (8) cases, the investigation found evidence to support the allegations.
In five (5) instances the Fraud Team were required to support the disciplinary
process, which led to three (3) dismissals and one (1) final written warning. In
one (1) instance, the member of staff was re-instated. Three (3) employees
resigned prior to a disciplinary hearing.

In ten (10) cases, service management completed the disciplinary process.
There was one (1) instance of a compromise agreement, two (2) employees
were re-instated and no further action recorded in the remaining seven (7).

The Fraud Team work closely with officers from HR and the service area
involved to ensure that the investigation is completed as quickly as possible.
The Fraud Team have a target to complete investigations within eight weeks of
the referral. This was achieved in 2017/18; although cases can and do take
longer to go through the disciplinary process and reach a conclusion.

The Fraud Team work closely with officers from HR and the service area
involved to ensure that the investigation is completed as quickly as possible.
The Fraud Team have a target to complete investigations within eight weeks of
the referral.

Table 4 — Employee Investigations by service area

Investigations
Service area 2017/18
Deputy Chief Executive 6
Chief Operating Officer 7
Homes for Haringey 4
Corporate Governance 1
Total 18

Use of the Council’s Whistleblowing policy 2017/18

Page 11 of 15



Page 28
Appendix A

4.1The Head of Audit and Risk Management maintains the central record of
referrals made using the Council’'s whistleblowing policy. In total, three
whistleblowing referrals were made during 2017/18, all which were
anonymous.

4.2 All referrals made using the whistleblowing policy are reviewed and
subsequent investigations are managed according to all relevant statutory
requirements, including Data Protection, Regulation of Investigatory Powers
and Police and Criminal Evidence Acts. In some cases, the limited amount of
information provided means a full investigation cannot be undertaken. The
Head of Audit and Risk Management undertakes an initial review of the
information before agreeing an approach with HR and service management.
Any allegations relating to financial issues are investigated by the Fraud Team.

4.3 In 2017/18, two cases were referred to service management to be dealt with
as they did not relate to financial issues; two cases related to previous
whistleblowing referrals made in 2015/16 which had been closed due to lack of
evidence, no further information was provided and the cases were closed; ten
cases were investigated by the Fraud Team, eight cases were closed either
due to lack of information or evidence and two cases were subject to further
action; two cases remained ongoing at the year end.

4.4Regular reminders regarding expected standards of behaviour and how to
report suspected fraud are provided via staff newsletters, the Council’s intranet
and website and via Haringey People and Home Zone publications.

5. Pro-active and Reactive Counter Fraud Activity 2017/18

5.1During 2017/18, the Fraud Team have undertaken a number of pro-active and
reactive counter-fraud projects in areas which have been identified as a high
fraud risk. Progress reports on this work have been reported to the Corporate
Committee during the year; the findings and outcomes are all shared with
service managers as the projects are delivered. Details of the key counter-
fraud projects are detailed below.

5.2Tenancy Fraud
5.2.1 In 2017/18, the Fraud Team continued to work with Homes for Haringey to
prevent and detect tenancy fraud. Numbers of referrals received, investigations

completed and properties recovered to date by the Fraud Team are
summarised below.

Page 12 of 15



Page 29
Appendix A

Table 5 — tenancy fraud referrals, investigations and properties recovered

2017/18 — Referrals received

Brought forward from 2016/17 93
Referrals received in 2016/17 197
Total referrals received for

investigation 290

2016/17 Outcomes

Properties Recovered 55
No Fraud identified 125
Total cases concluded 180
Ongoing Investigations 110*

*See Note 1 below

Note 1:

Of the 110 ongoing investigations; 42 of these cases (38%) are progressing
towards Tenancy recovery. Following a referral, the status of the tenancy has
been investigated and the case is either awaiting a Court Hearing, the
Particulars of Claim are with Legal Services, an NTQ is awaiting expiry, a
succession application has been refused and the tenant is awaiting an offer of
smaller accommodation, or the rent account is showing an “Unauthorised
Occupant” on the Housing database, awaiting eviction.

Note 2:
Twenty-two (22) of the properties recovered in the financial year have been
assisted through a Tenancy Fraud project which involves officers from the
Fraud Team accompanying warrant officers, where a court order has been
granted to access properties, to ensure the safety of gas appliances.

5.3 Prosecutions

5.3.1 As at 31 March 2018 (Q4) two (2) Tenancy Fraud cases are in preparation
for prosecution and one (1) further joint prosecution with a Registered
Provider is under consideration.

5.4Gas safety — execution of warrant visits

5.4.1 170 Gas Safety warrants have been executed in total in the financial year;
where twenty-two (22) of the 55 properties recovered through Tenancy Fraud
can be attributed in whole, or part to ongoing investigations by the Fraud
Team.

5.4.2A further sixteen (16) properties are under continued investigation or
monitoring for one of the following three reasons (i) a forced entry and awaiting
collection of the keys by the displaced occupant (ii) the property is already
under investigation and awaiting possession actions by either Tenancy
Management or Legal Services) (iii) the property is already subject to an

Page 13 of 15



Page 30
Appendix A

‘Unauthorised Occupant’. There may be some duplication with these cases
and those that are recorded as being with Legal (Note 1 above).

5.4.3Through these visits, the Fraud Team have come across cases of concern;
where the living conditions and/or vulnerability of a tenant needs to be
addressed by Tenancy Management or Social Services. These are reported to
the appropriate Service. In 2017/18, instances began to arise of the Fraud
Team attending properties for a second time, to execute a warrant, where
cases of concern were still apparent from a previous visit.

5.5Keys

5.5.1 Following Gas Warrant interventions and particularly where there has been a
forced entry, but keys have not been collected; the Fraud Team have begun
working with:

(i) Gathered evidence,;

(i) Homes for Haringey (HfH) Tenancy Management data; and

(i) HfH Repairs Team records and matching with public information to
establish genuine occupancy details. Where discrepancies are noted, tenancy
fraud recovery action will be taken.

5.6 Regeneration

5.6.1 The Fraud Team are now working with the Regeneration Team to review
tenancies (both secure and Temporary Accommodation) to assist in:
(i) The decanting and re-locating of displaced tenants on Regeneration
estates, and
(i) Leaseholders who are in negotiation to have their homes bought back.

5.6.2 To date the Fraud Team have prevented one fraudulent application to decant
an individual to a larger property than needed and prevented one fraudulent
application to have a home brought back as a resident, rather than a non-
resident leaseholder.

5.7No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF)

5.7.1 In November 2017, the NRPF team received a Final Report following an
Internal Audit, where they received Limited Assurance. One of the
recommendations was that the NRPF team work with the Fraud Team at initial
interview, or screening stage of an application. It is expected that this will
resume in 2018/19.

5.7.2 As at Quarter 4, eighty-one (81) referrals have been received and responded
to by the Fraud Team through the financial year. It can be reported that in at
least 35 instances (43%) the Fraud Team intervention has averted a fraudulent
application and/ or either financial or accommodation support being given. The
average cost of NRPF support per family (accommodation and subsistence for
a 2 child household) is around £20,000 per annum.

Page 14 of 15



Page 31
Appendix A

5.7.3 It can be viewed that the interventions of the Fraud Team have therefore
saved the Council £700,000 in support and accommodation costs, which may
otherwise have been awarded where there was, in fact, no eligibility for
assistance.

5.7.4 The project will be carried forward into the Fraud Work plan 2018/19, where
advice, support and assistance to NRPF will continue and enhanced recording
and monitoring of outcomes will be established.

6. Counter-fraud — value of outcomes achieved in 2017/18

6.1 In 2017/18, the target for counter-fraud work was to contribute a minimum of
£10m worth of savings, or avoided expenditure, to assist the Council in
improving its frontline services. The total cost of the counter-fraud team in
2017/18 was £685k.

6.2 The Cabinet Office (previously the Audit Commission) valued the recovery of a
tenancy, which has previously been fraudulently occupied, at an annual value
of £18,000, relating to average Temporary Accommodation (TA) costs. No new
national performance indicators for tenancy fraud have been produced;
therefore the £18,000 figure is still used, although this is considered low if the
tenancy has been illegally sublet for several years.

Table 6 — value of outcomes achieved as a result of counter-fraud work

Different values can be attributed to the recovery of a property where tenancy
fraud has been identified. Across London different criterion are used. Haringey
continue to base their tenancy fraud values on the former Audit Commission (now
Cabinet Office) assessment of £18,000, being the estimated expenditure on
Temporary Accommodation (TA) for one year, which would not have been
necessary with the use and occupation of a legitimate secure tenancy.

The following values (savings) can therefore be attributed to the recovery, or
cessation, of fraudulent tenancies in the financial year 2017/18.

VL;?JL Total

Counter-Fraud Activity Number | £000s ——
Recovery of Council Tenancy

Sublet/ Succession o4 18 972

Recovery of TA 1 18 18

Total 55 18 990

Page 15 of 15




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33 Agenda Item 9

Report for: Corporate Committee — 24 July 2018

Item number: 9

Title: Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
Report

authorised by : Assistant Director of Corporate Governance
Lead Officer: Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management

Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 Toinform the Corporate Committee of the statutory requirements to produce an
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and provide a draft statement relating to
the 2017/18 financial year for review and approval.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1  Not applicable.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The Corporate Committee review and approve the draft 2017/18 AGS.

3.2  That the Corporate Committee notes the approval timescale and processes for
the draft 2017/18 AGS.

4. Reasons for decision

4.1  The Corporate Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s draft AGS
as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and provide
information on its sources of assurance from across the Council, reports have
been provided on a regular basis for the Corporate Committee, culminating in
the production of the draft AGS.

5. Alternative options considered
5.1 Not applicable.

6. Background information

6.1 The Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for
publication with the Council’'s annual accounts. The AGS comments on the
Council’'s governance framework as a whole. Corporate governance brings
together an underlying set of legislative requirements, governance principles
and management processes.

6.2  The preparation of an AGS is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015. These regulations require local authorities to produce an
annual statement, in accordance with ‘proper practice’.

Haringey


mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

8.1

Page 34

In order to comply with the statutory reporting deadlines, the AGS for 2017/18
has to be approved by 31 July 2018. The Leader and Chief Executive will sign
the statement assurance that responsibilities have been adopted at a

corporate level and adequate processes exist and are effective before they sign
the AGS.

Prior to its final approval, the Council needs to demonstrate that the AGS has
been reviewed and agreed by relevant senior managers across the authority
and an appropriate member body. The Statutory Officers’ Group have reviewed
a draft AGS and a copy of this is provided at Appendix A.

The AGS has been produced in line with the revised guidance issued in 2016
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) in their report ‘Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework’. The guidance applies to
governance statements produced from 2016/17 onwards.

The 2016 guidance covers broadly the same areas as the previous 2012
guidance by CIPFA and SOLACE, but now includes a new section:
‘Implementing good practice in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver
effective accountability’. This has been incorporated into the draft AGS as
section G.

The revised guidance is recommended to be used as ‘best practice’ for
developing and maintaining a locally adopted code of governance. The
Council’s existing and published Local Code of Corporate Governance will be
revised to incorporate the updated guidance and submitted to the Corporate
Committee for approval at a subsequent meeting in 2018/19.

It is acknowledged that the draft AGS is presented for review prior to the
statutory external audit of the accounts. However, any significant governance or
internal control issues which arise as a result of the final accounts audit can be
included in the AGS and re-submitted for officer and member consideration and
approval before the closure of the statutory audit period on 30 September 2018.

Contribution to strategic outcomes

Corporate governance is an important element of the external assessment
processes. The annual accounts, including the AGS, are subject to audit by the
council’s external auditors. While the whole of the financial statements may not
be qualified, an incorrect or inaccurate AGS may be raised as a
recommendation by the external auditors. Ensuring the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements, which cover all Priority
areas, will assist in improving services to residents and other stakeholders.

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work

Haringey



Page 35

within service areas which supports and provides evidence for the AGS, is
contained and managed within their revenue budgets. Service departments
manage risks and governance arrangements as part of the routine work to
achieve their business plans and costs are contained within their revenue
budgets.

Internal audit undertake reviews of matters arising at the Statutory Officers
Meeting and in consultation with the Prioprity Owners identified the significant
governance issues. Additionally, the Head of Audit and Risk Management
provides an annual report to support the assurance processes for the AGS. This
work is part of the annual internal audit plan and costs are included within Audit
and Risk Management’s budget.

The Chief Finance Officer confirms that the presentation of the attached draft
AGS for approval by this Committee meets the Council’s statutory requirement
under the 2015 Accounts and Audit Regulations.

8.2 Leqal
The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted in the

preparation of this report, and in noting that the AGS has been produced in
accordance with current and best practice guidelines, has no comments.

8.3  Equality
There are no direct equality implications for the Council’s existing policies,

priorities and strategies as a result of this report. However, ensuring that the
Council has effective governance arrangements in place and taking appropriate
action to improve these where required will assist the Council to use its
available resources more effectively.

This report deals with governance arrangements and their implementation
across all areas of the Council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in managing governance will therefore improve
services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

9. Use of Appendices
Appendix A — Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Not applicable.

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 37

: "SIUN0SoE pue Joda
E:::woﬁvs_m>2anwm£homﬁuo£2n=u:mm_.owsﬂms_.._.muoucm._mm»mﬁ._o*%mctmmﬁoum_n:_:8nwm;x._o..smEmtmo=mEm>ommE.

“Afeojuoucse pue AjeaRoeye ‘Ajusioys welp ebauew o} e|qe ame em 18y Buunsue 'pesjjeal 8q
Aoy pinoys 1ordu eL pue pesifeal Buieq sysu JO POOYjIe|| 8y} JO UCHBNBAE EU} JO} SMOJjE OS[E §|0QUOD JO WelsSAS 8] "SeARos(qo pue swie
'sejojod 8 AsBuuel jO JUeLIBABIYSE BYL 0] sysu asiuoud pue Ajjuep; o} peubisep sseoosd BuloBuo ue uo peseq §| |0RUCD [BWSLY| JO WeSAS
8l] "SSeUBANDBJS JO BDURINSSE B|quuosseal B epjacid uBD ¥ INQ ‘seaos(qo pue swie ‘sepdljod eAsiyoe o) ainjs) JO YsuU |8 eyeujw|e jouuad
)| "[eAs; siqeuosess B 0] ¥su eBeusw o} psuBisep s| pue yomswely eousweAct el jo wed jueoyubls B S| j0RUCD [BUWSIU| JO WeISAS B8Y|

“sao|AIes 8Aloale-180 pue ejsudoidde

Jo Kieajjep By} 0] P8 8ABY SBA0SIGO 8SOY) JeUIBYM JOPISUCD O} puB saAjosiqo oiBeiens s) JO JUBLIBASIYIR BU} JOYUOW O} 8jqe S| Ajioyine ay)
‘suomeLLres eyl YBnoayj "Arunwiwod ey} spes| pue yum sebaBue ‘o) sjunosos 1 yoiym ybBnouys seiAioe sy} sesudwod os[e ylomeumay eyl
‘pe|jeLCD puB pejoap S| AJLUOWINE 8y} YaIym Aq 'senfea pue einyno pue ‘sessescud pue swelsAs ey} sesudod ylomswey esuswencl eyl
: yJomelurl} esuawienob ayy jo esodind ey

"JUSILBIELS 8JUBLLIBAOE) [BNUUyY
ue Jo uoneayqnd ey} O} UORElel U} ‘GL0Z suonenBey Upny pue suncooy sy jo (1)g uojeinbau Jo sjuswesinbeu ey} s1aall OS[B I ‘BAlSaYe puB
eoejd Ul ase SJUBWIPWIWIOD 8sey] 1By eourinser s188 § moy yim JeyieBo) ‘esusliescs ajei0diod JO 8pa) {2907 68U Jo UEd SB sjuauRiuWwoed
§,ilounoy) sy} sumedxe juswielels Sy 8oy Buuojuoy 8,JIoUNC) BYL WO peursqo eq Ued Adoo B pue e}sgam s,|founcy ey} uo peysiignd
s| eouswenoB ejriodiod Jo 8pod 80| S§,jIouno) AsBuleH *JUSWILIBACY [BOC0] Uj SJUBLLBAOY) pooD Buueale(, }iomeumeld JOVIOS/V-dID
ay} 40 seidiouud eyl yuM JuUSISISUOD S| Yojym ‘sousuiercy) ejeiodio) jo epoDd [8907 B pajdope pus peaaxide sey Ajuouyne eyl

“su jo uswebeurw sy} Joj sjuswaBbuelie sepn|oul YoIYm ‘SUCRIUN S} JO BS{018X8 BAHDAYS
sy} Bunsyos; ‘sieye S Jo eouelwench ey} o} syuswebueue Jedoud eoeid ui Bugind Joy e|gisucdsas osfe s| AebupsH ‘siy} BujBieyosip uj

"SSOUBAJI08)S puB ADUS|oyie ‘ALIOUODS JO LONBUIqLICD B O}
preBas yym ‘pesiniexe afe suoEouny sY Yojym L Aem ey ui jJusweacidw] SNONURLICD 8undes O} sjusiuebuaue eyBL 0} 6661 WOV JUBLULLSAOS)
[B00T 8y} Jepun Anp B sBy ose AsBuusH ‘AleAnoeys pue Ajuejoye ‘Alfeoiwouocde pesn pue 10} pejunoooe Auedoid pue pepsenbajes
s Asuow ojjqnd 3By} ‘spuepuEs Jodoid pue mE| B LM 8OUBPIOSIE Ul Pelonpuca S| sseulsng sY 18y Buunsus Jo} ejqisuocdsas s| AsbulieH

Aipqisuodseud o edoog

g1/ 102 1USLWSIR1S 9OUBUISAOY) [BNULY

11

[

el

(43



Page 38

[=190%¢=5 SUOIS[o& e TAO 50 ;
:noB*wepoyy uo peysyqnd pue pepioosl OS[e auB suois|oap JeaylO "suswslnbal
Aouamdsusl pue [B88| MO0} SUO|SIDBP Jequiew 1o} seoporid Bupew-uoisioeg (e

8 E]1S-1N0 <0 ~{B20)/5N°AD : 5
. -j8ulalul pue eysqem [eLsiUl ey uo peysiiqnd ‘{euocjssejold
PUB ‘8|qejunoady ‘snojliquiy ‘UBwni) 5102 ul pelepdn senep AsBuueH (p

INolABYaq JO SpUBpuB)S pejoedxe
UO SJele[smeu 4e1s [Buwselu) BiA penss| e siopulel JeinBey "seakojdwe meu e o3
PeplAcud s pue sjsesalu| Jo sjoiyuco fequalad (B auejaep 0} sieayjo salinbal epo)
Syl "eyeqem [BLIslU| By} UO peys|iand (g1.0g AlBruge-]) 1onpuo?) Jo epon Jeoyo (o

"JNoIABYEQ JO SPIBpUES
pejoedxe Uo pejosie ae sl Usym siequusyy MaU |B Joj pepiaoud sj uogonpu] (g

,- MBY MM/ AU
;Jelusiut ey uo pays|iqngd “Jueugujodde

40 Uofo8e uo suaquisw Bunoa pejdo-0o pue siequely o sejjdde ‘g1sa.0)u)
aJ8joep 0} siequew salinbai (2102 Ainr) 1onpuog Jo epos Jequeyy slounop ey (e

me| Jo ejru ey Bupoedse: pue ‘sen|ea [Bojye 0] juswywwos Buons Bupensuowep ‘AuBaiu yym Bujaeyeg -y
paiinbal uonae
iayuny 1o ‘aoueldwoo U sdeb payijuep) sa|diouud aourweAcb ay) ypm aoueldwod Buneiisuowsp uopeEjuBWN30Q]

‘6102 Yyasew Aq pejsjdwoo
8q 0} SUCHOE |8 yim 18010 Aoie;s eyl AQ pelociusc pue pealbe ueld LUORJE UB ULIO ||iM MBIAB) fBNUUR By} Jo yed se paynuep| sdeb Auy
'se|dioupd eousweAoB ey} sjeew ounoy AsBuueH moy Bugensuowep eosid uj syuswebuaue ey pue «JUBLLLIBACY) [BOOT U] 8OUBLLIBAOE)
Poog Buusaied, sucmewry JOVIOS / V4dIO eyl ul o 188 sejdjouud eouBWaACE usAes eyy JO LoES sW6(ubiy uoposs Bumajio} ey 2



Page 39

uo peysjignd pue eoe|d uj a1e eejoljod sjuieidwaod oyioads aajales pue eyeiadio)

S lJod" Ua)C oou

= (415 111 o£ uc aue se|aljod sy .6 seidon) n:o._w

weweBeuely ereiodion 03 sucgejuesald ssausseme sapiaold pue esjjwIWoD)
egiodion 0} (Aoiod Bumojq siIs|ym ey] JO Bsn PUB) SSLIOJIN0 puB SSBUBA|D8YS
‘suopor uo suodeu JuewwsBaueyy Ysiy puB ¥pPNY Jo peeH eyl ‘(G102 AInr)

Aoyjod Bujmolq spsiym 8w Buipnjou ‘eaeid uy s| ABeyeus uofdnLuoD pus prey-RUY

‘9)Sqem [Busslul ay) uo pjey eue seje|duie} piepuBlS pue /L/9102

uj s1e9130 Jo} pepinasd sem sjzodes eajoselqo pue [esBoj ‘Jesjo Buum uo sioyne
uodau Joj Bujumed | “eojape sauewy pue refs| Buipniou| ‘esjApe s Jeoyjo Alojniels
epnjou] pue Jesjo S| SUOIS|ISP JO} SISBY 8UY 1BY) oS ‘siesodaud Joj sauepiAe pue
Bujuoseal epjrcid osfe ISNW sioyIne Lodey “sepuold pue seanossiqo ejeiodiod eyl
sjeew fescdoud Jieyl moy e1e;s 0] sioyine podel sauinbas JeuLo} yodel prepusls

*‘S80IN0S8Y UBLUNH U] psujelss ale Suuo) uojris|oap 'siea|jo 404
SiselejU-slaquenl

) A :eisqem

8yy uo nm_._m__n:n eJB pue S1S8JajUl JO SuolRIB|o8p JiBY) E,_.s pepicos) efe siaquaw
Joy Ayeudsoy pue syin ‘ebusys seausswnallo Usym/se U0 meu B 818|dwod
pinoys Jels 'sieak om] Aleae uoRe.Bioap B 818|dwod o} pasinbai aue siebsusl
Jojueg ‘uojiasB|oep s188Jeiu] Jo Jeys|Bey e)e|dwiod o] Jels Meu |8 10} Juewelinbey

mc_ﬁmE 4oue JO} 8pBLU SUOjEsEIo8p
eysudosdde pus Eanom ﬁEmE_ Jo mcoam._u_umu Mmoys senuyy uswyujodde/ucgosie
uo peyosyo seeido-0o/siequuetu Joj Ajjeydsoy pue syib pue sjseusiul Jo JaisiBay

o1

M

3]

/]

painbal uonoe
Jsyuny Jo ‘esueldwos w sdeb payijusp)

so|dipuud souewanch sy yum asueldwos Bugensuowap uoBILBWNDOC




Page 40

'81L02 Ul pes|dwiod

8q [IIm puB 81/ |02 U| PesusLoD

om siyi -uonesjiqnd IDVIOSANHID

,80UBLWIBADY) poor) Buuealje(,

8102 el ul sjuelesjnbai eogorud 1s8q

ey} e)riodioau| 0} g40g Ul pas|euy eq
0} 83uUBWIBAOY B1RI0dIOY JO 8pon) eooT (|

U pue fuBay) Yyum 108 0] sagjues Jo siepjacid [elus)xe seBeinooue ouncg syp o

B 1 v uU B

:Z /9102 Ul ssjwo) uojjrisunwey pue Buyers A
peaiBe sBm asel] majaal 0] sseo0.d B ‘eakid u) sainpsacud pue seloljod seainosel
UBLUNY SNOUBA SBY [1ounc) ey] “Ajefes pue yyesy pue BujpienBejes se |jem sB
'8}08AU02 ifB U] INJATHd, 0} Buleyas esnejo prepuE)s e Bulpnjou| 's1oB4UOS pUB

usweinaoud |fe oju; siueLwalinbey 10y enfBA [8]20S ey} Bugsiodioouy; si jlounoy ey (u

saILUIOD-SpIepUE]S/SpiEpUEIs-INo/ASEI00 ap-[B00]AN"ACD AeDUIE ]
"WLISdU0d esnes JoNPUOI JO SSNSE| aJaym SIBqLUIBIA] O} SSJ0U JAPB/ISPU[WS]
(enss| o} sdnous auinbey Jo) enssi pue apon Jequayy ey} jo sayowaiq
jo suonede)e yym sieep sapjluwod ey -Aessadsu SB [jouno) [iny 0} Buguodeu
‘eouBuLO)ed pue SPUBPUE]S [BOILIS S,LUORES|UBB.IO BY) SUBIUBLL PUE SIOHUOKU
seysiiqeise “Jeoyso Bulioyuop s,jjounog ey yum Buofe ‘esiwwon spiepuElg ey {w

oqe-siul 09/MoBqpea]-Iounog, "AOD ASDUL 3
"ewi) jsuy WBu ¥ BumeB pue sesuodsel U] eonorid 1seq Jo sejdwexe I8
Bupjoo| pedojeasp useq easy suaissss Buuiel) ‘sweydg uolBI|aNd el JO mejaal
B Bujonpuco osfe ase em siiy} J0 1JBd SB — sIBLW0ISND 0] 8|q|SSesor Ajjsee spew
pue peysiiqnd Bujeq s uoieuLo| aloly ‘sjurEidwod woy Buiwes| uo siseydwe
ue yyim Bugiodal Jo [nBYBAO U ussq sey elell (DSS) anuen) 89JAI8g paJByS

8} 0} Wwes] (D) edUBWEACE UORBULIOJL| PUB %0BOPas4 J0 Jajsues eyl Bumaliod
“(Z1/60/81 Modal jsey8|) dnoun susolO ACINIBIS S ljlouUNcg) eyl 0} Auenbeu

| peuodai pue paiojuow ) g pue | ebejg 18 pjeydn sjuBdwoo JO |aAe] elsgem au]

palinbal uonoe
Jayuny Jo ‘souendwoo ul sdeb paiyjuapi

sa(diouud sauewarob ay) yum aoue|dwos Buigeqnsuolep UolEBWINDIC(




jewebvbue Jepjoyexels eajsueysidwos pue sseuusedo Buunsug g

Page 41

"payoeeiq jou ase suojje|nfias pue mej einsus
pue 8siApe 0} j8uiqag/|iounoD ey jo sBuiesw 1B ejqe|eAR e sieolyo loymBlg (s

. 8L/L102
ul payinbal useq aABY suodal Jaayjo AiojniEls o “Jeoo AoJniEs JueAs|au e Aq
[lounog |n} 03 Modeu B Jo 1o8fgns eyl eq ued suopB|nbal [ejouBuY/MB| JO SByoBRlg (I

1SUNoo-, 20LUS 0 0D ASDU] 5
1ewequ; ey} uo peysiiqnd pue AusinBas pejepdn pue pemeiral
s1 uogniasuc) |jouncy ey “suemod peyebsjep iepun sieoyjo pue siequIBl J8UIgE)

[BnpiApU] ‘Jaulge ‘llsuna [ing AQ ‘uogmisuog jiounog ey} pue siuswelnbes
Aioymes JueAeial UM 80UBRICOOR U] ‘USYE] SJ8 SUQ|S|08(] "SISP|OYSNE]S J84J0 pue
SUNWIWOoD ‘susz}od Jo jyeueq ey} Joj ejge|eAe siemod el sesjwpdo jpunc) eyl (b

"sjuewwelinbai Aiopenfes pue eageis|Be] yum eouepICooE Uj Sepjiq|suadse

418U} |U§ny O} PEBU 6L} JO JUNOJIB BXE} 18U SjueLueljnbes eBe| yum auj| U] yum
}yBep ase s[essjwsip/euldiosip Jiey | “(jounod |iny Aq pejuodde ese sieoyjo AoymeEls {d

Mg| 10 ajnd ey} aJse

GRUWO9/AJIUNIHG0 A ACD ASBULEY MMM/ diiY

“mc@m;m
uonsuuoju Ul ucpesjuelio eyy Aq peoedxs spiepusls BojWye by yum esueldwos

palinbal uoijoe
Jeyuny Jo ‘asuefdwos ul sdef payiuap) sajdipuud souewasnob syl yum soueidwos BuljeiisuoWwsp UOIIBILBLINAG(]




Page 42

‘8102 ABy Jo 818p uopBlusLe|duj

ey} 1sod Buyepdn ainbed (s 18U

souBWBAOD uopBULIOIU LIYEM SBBIB JBL0

peuguep! sey sseacud uapsiusLue|du)

8u} ‘8102 Aeyy ul en| oB 105 (HdaD)

uonenBey uopoejoid By [RIBUSD) SN
ay; Bupuewsidwy Ajeagos s) jlouncn 8y (2

"101088 Arejunjoa ey Jo yibuans ey eacidul] 0] UOREPUNO S[ORIOKY Ul UM
Buppom ‘zo00es Aiejunjoa [eso| ey yum sdiysuogejes seBuans abioy o) paubisep
S 102 Jequieoe( u| peaaidde sem iojoas Ayunwiuo ey yum diysieuped v {p

siy1 yBnouyy pebeinooue s ssusuLoued N0 UO }oBGPSS) mumnm__s ay} :o SaWooNo
pue saAnoefqo ueld eyriodion uo SB8YM BoUBULIOLE, mme_m__n:n jjounog ey |

v [-ABS-JNOA- oouep
%ﬂﬂmﬁgﬂﬂ *1euweiu] eyl uo ue|d-8 uopBYNSUOD
ey} uo pajsad §] Yyajym ‘ueid uoheynsuod B aljnbas SUCKBYNSUOD | "6}STeM
[BLWS1U| S} UO 1{|00]) PUB JOMBYD LO[BYNSUOD B pUB JOJBUIPIO-09 UOIEINSUOD

B S8y }| 'siep|oyeysls yum siseq Jejnbai B uo uoieynsuod NG saBd |puno) eyl (o

UO[IMYISUOY []DUNOY) By} Ul N0 198 am B:mEE_m_um._
Alojmeis pue [800| 8y| eoe|d u| S| SUO|S|28p AsY iBuIqeD 10} aunpeacud )
Ires e pue sucnjed pue suopEINdep 10} SMO|[B UORNIASUOD ay | "ojignd auy 0} usdo
pue pesipaape sBujjsswl 18 use] ose ase suo|s|oap pejebe|ap Jequuey “UO[IBLLIOU|
fenuspyuod Ajjaiewwos euy Bureaos seajpuedde g ped Buiagy Jusweinaoid
o} Bupsles spodal £ UM '81/21.02 Ul g WBd Ul USHB] USa] SBY SBm UO|S|98p

auQ "sBupesw jo ucgoss (g UBd) eyeaud eup Ul uexe: Ajeuel ese suolsioap Jequsaly {q

m EN o_uoo fouamdsusl 1, 8yt Jo sjuawelnbai au Japun m_.__u_.__o_.__
PBEOUMOP JO MBIA O] 8|qR|iEAB UOJBULIOJU| IN0 S188 SLusyoS Uoped|gnd jiouno) eyl (@

palinbal uopoe
Jayuny Jo ‘soue(dwod u) sdeb psaynuep

sa|diouud asuewsAob ayl yum asuedwos Buijelisucwsp LOIIBIUSBWND0Q




Page 43

"sjuapisal yym eBebue o} yred puepeqInyLoN

pue Hied [eoN wee] Bujpniou| sieys|smau Jepjoysye)s pue sdiysieupred ayjoeds
§BY OS[B [|ounos 8y "euljuo ajdoa ] AeBuueH Apjeem eyl pue sjdosd AeBuuBH
'}00qeoB] USiUM ] WUNoIsY AN ‘elisgem [jounoc) eyt Buipn|ou) ‘siep|oyeyels

puB sjusp|sas yum ebebue o} Bjpew juud pus fejoos sasn o8B ([ouno) ey) (B

8102 Aeruged JIg| Aepsen] uo (eujqesy Jo) epusby

‘lsu|qe] pue |[ouno) |In} 8Ly 0} _uctan em yolym mm_Eotn
82188 U0 /| 0Z Jequess( pus Jeqoia() usemiaq apnjou] ssejdnexe ‘sessasoud
wewefiefue pue UOREYNSLOD [BULID} U] IND30 ogfe JustueBabus Juepissy

*UBUP|YD JO} SN0 BACIdLL| 0] SJOBYIS JNO Yim

Bupom !suciiepuewWILICDer UgISS|WWo T 1S e Buusajiep ‘uajbutis| pue uspur)
yiim eojnies ABojouyoe] uoeuLojus paseys ayy uojfiuls| yum diysieliynad Bueqijepn
] émm_._ Wor 8wy mu:_uc_ n.;ﬂm:tma ul moﬁa_u_tma [Iounon mE EmEs sejdwex]

ﬁ_mnm; el uo um;m_ﬁ_._n aJe 4S9 ey} hov, mmE:_E pue mm_u:mm<

"(dSD) diysusuned A18jBS AJunwiwod 8y} puB (DYHYIN) BoUBISJUOD JUBISEBSSY
ysiY AousBy-n ‘(Gvs) pieog synpy BulprenBejes (@0S1) pBog S,usIpiyD
BuipsenBejeg eao eyl Bujpnjoul ‘sepuoud sy (B ssoioe Buppom diysteuusd
Aoy seiodioout ueld ejaicdion) ay) ‘A[leAfaaye 8I0W PaASioE S8W0IIN0 pue
Aueioyjs erctu pesn 8q 0} seaunoseal 1o} moje sdiysisupied [BULIOjU] PUB [BLLLIO

*SI8SN SIIAIES pUB s1apjoyaxels yum Jjuswebebus

|Iny sseduwiooue sessesold ey} ‘'sawodNo Jeajep pus sedlaes ulijsapal o}

2 Aoud ue|d e1si0dion s, [iounon) ay) ssosoe pasn Ajepim Bujeq s| uaionpoid-c)
"Se[IUNWWOD 00| Yoddns of Juswuseaul pus Bujpuny auow 1oruYE 03 ) Bujjqeue

(®

paldinbal uojoe
Jaypuny Jo ‘ssue|dwod ul sdef paynuapi

sajdisuud asuewaaol syl yum aouejdwos Buljelysuowsp UCEIUBWNI0Q]




Page 44

‘6L/8L0¢

Joj esodaoud sBuines ey} u) paunjdes

uesq sy |BRIOYS 8Y] "gL0g Amruged uj

lsulqed o) pepaded SE ‘gl/2 |02 Ul WY'E3

jo sBujnes anuones pesodoud sy Buueaiep
ul lesuoys B peiiuep Isuncy) ey (g

Bujouereq *seoinosel 8|qE|[BAB U[YNM puB suoneedo JO 1809 j|n} BU} JUNCo0E
oju Bupie ueld e1RI0dI0D BLY JBAISP [[IM [I9UNOD BU} MOL INO 185 888Y | "UB|]
S2uapLoM PUB (SLLIN) ABeraas ejousul4 wue) wnipsyy peaibe ue say jounoy eyl (q

‘slepjoyeye)s

Jsyio pue sjusp|sal ‘'siesn edlAes uo j1oedw| pepuell; eyl Aliceds stetin

8woano ey "syjuocw saiyl AieAe sjafine; oyioeds jsupbe Bujasjyoe ese sieuped
pue [iounod eyl moy moys o} eysgem sy uo seepdn seysjignd [jpunog syl (B

IDajens-pUe-seiolod/ATEI00ep-T800]| AN ACD ABDULBU MmN/

:esqem eu} Uo peysiiand s| UBjd oy | ‘SpIEog ALOLd

830QI08 8Onss| pue sys| ‘sjysuaq ‘'sewcono Jo Gupodes sy o) yosoudde jJueysisuoo

pue Jesjo & 8| a4ay ) ‘uopeusweidwt oefoud Jo ued sz Bupjorq puB LoRERIYRUSP
fyeueq pue sawoano uo snoaoj alnbel uswebausw pue Bujuueid swweiBoiy
"seJnsesl egusuLoyed jo jes BujBuelfeyo e sapnjou| ue|d 8y) ‘suo|s|oep
puB sueld ‘sejojod Jo 108dLUI [BUBLILCIIAUS PUR [BI90S ‘S|LIOLIOJA BY) SEOUBR]
pue suspjsucd ) sjefisey snopiqure Jo sees B Aq peuuid-sepun yoes ‘sease Auoud
8100 uenes sey ue|d ey | ‘€202 Aq sBujAes uoj|jw gg3 punose Bupsaep ajym
‘eoB(d |njssedons eiow e AsBuueH eyBw pue yBnooq ayy eacidis 0} SBIUNWILLOD
Yum pue susinrad yiim suom JyBjw (1aunog eyl moy 1no sies ueld ejeiodion ay) (B

88WOJIN0 pepueluj ey} JO JueweAs)yoe ey} esjwiido o) Alessageu suonos ey Buluuueleq ‘g

PUB §}}J6UBQ {BUSWILOI|AUS PUB ‘[B]O0S ‘D|WOUCIS B|qBUIBISNS JO StUIS] U] S8wWoano Buluyeqg 9

painbal uopoe
Jeyuny 1o ‘asue||dwod u) sdeb payusp)

sa|disuud eoueussaob sy; yum soueldwos Buneiisuowsp UQIJEUBLINDO]




Pag'e 45

"§18888 AJUNIWOD JO esn ey} 0} SB Sjueweljnbas ‘ejqeoydde ejeym ‘pue ucpoes
.enfea gjoos, ey} uj BuyBlem jusoyiubls 8 epnjou) susweinooid enea yBjH ‘eBap
Bujary uopuoT eyy Aed o) peBrinoous ae siekojdwe ‘e|qissod aisym pue ‘eweyas

diyseonusidde ue epnjou] 1snw enfea Ui W3 Joao s}oefoid UOONLSUCD ‘BjdWEXe
404 "S]0B4UCD U] 8N[eA [B|o0s 8ouBLuUe 0] Sjuswealinbes sepnjoul lounog ey (@

§pd-uodai0z961aA03079%S4 LIN/0Z666S/S3uBwnlopHn a0 Aaduuey-sainu |wrmmm//:dny
! seAposlqo
fojjod o} pesjuy sjuetualinbal JusunseAu| uue) JeBuo| §,19unoy ey} N0 S188 YoIUM
‘810g Arenige4 gg uo jisuno) [In4 Aq peacidde sem swweibord (eydes seleayy (P
eoUBRUIIoHad
B=E E = 2DULEY MMM/ .dny
‘eysgem ey} uo paysiqnd s| ssaiosiqo jsuebe eousuloued
"elequaiy 1eujqe) JeAs|el ey Aq pepuele spieoq dife]RlS puB sI8ol0
Joiues Aq pepusye spreog [euopeied pue sdnauB-gng eouBUL peonpaL
alem spueog eouBweAct meu ealy) ‘Auoud yoes Jo4 “pejidde seainosas pue
uejd ejei0dios aiy Jo JuBLIBABIYOE B} Jo Aunuos pue Buuoyuow JenBau epjaoid
0} 21/9102 | pejuswsidiu; sem ssesoud asueweach el meu v "sjefie pue
senuopd ‘sueid [Buoniedo pue ojfeyaas jercd se|9As joquod pue Buuueld 1snqoy (o

TvDuwl o6 AG [¥] . i o} ilVE
‘jeuiqeD eyj o} pepjaoid aJe spadai Auepeny) ‘sewoono pesibe ey
eAefloB 0} ¥ ejqeue 0] s|jiNs WbU ey} sey eatopiom s} aunsua pue ‘seguoud asjues

paJinbaJ uonoe
Jayuny 40 ‘asuedwod ul sdeb peyiuap|

sa|diouud aoueusarob ay) yum souerdwos Buizensuowap LOITBILSWNSO(]




Page 46

- 81 ya)ym "swwriBaid Juswidojeasp pue Buiues ejrIcdioD §,|[DUN0T) 8y} O} SS800B
eABY SIeqUIBW pUB 'siequietu {8 Jo} Bujues Jo swweiBaid © sepjacid |jounod eyl

“Aingeay) pue suoisuad ‘esueuy ‘ypne ‘Buisues)| ‘Bujuueid pepniaut gL/ 102 Buunp
suojsses Bujupes | "sespiWOD esey) 10} sa|qisucdsal Jieyy 0} syivads Bujures
yiim pepiaasd afe seapiwiwos) AiojeinBey pue ejsiodion ey} Uo Us oym suequusiy

"JauBAQU| 8y} uo peysijqrd Ajusund ‘SJ8oH0 10) UOIBSLOUINE JO SLIAYDS BaIB
80|jAles B SBY OS[e Base 8o|Aes Youd ‘uogebejep Jo ewsyos [eieusb ey) sepnjoy|
ose ) -sjusweauinbai AioymeEs jueasies yum Aidwoo asey | "senijjqeiunoosos
Bupfaw-uoisioep yyMm 80UBPIOODR Ul PEUYSP BB sejyiqisucdsal aalloadsal sy
8INsue 0] $8|0J BAIINJBXO JB{YO PUB JOPEB| 8Y} INC §18S UORNYISUOY) §,[jounc) ey

"18UIgRS 10 __uc_._oo __E euy Jo Bupfew uoisioep BA)}08|j00 6Ly Jo} peAssal mmo£
pue peyabajep s) 18U} sSucis|oep jo sedA) ey} seyioeds uogmsuo) jjouncn eyl (q

(2]

(©

[do[eAa

‘sjuewwalnbal ebBepy BulAM UCPUOT pUB WNWJUJLWLE YHM

Buifidwos Buipniou; ‘geis peAaids 03 payiu|| 10U Si 8210pUOM JNO sB ‘sessaacud
Butuoss|jwwoo pue Bupoeiuod Jo ued Jes|2 B ULIO) 0SB SU0|IB108dXe 8210PUOAM
81-GT0c-Us[d

/f-
B_mnma euy uo peysjqnd s| ueid m.._._. mm_Eo:n §,/lounon

8y} JaAlep o1 |Ins eyeudoidds ey uyym seoe|d WyBu ey u eidoed yBu ey sey
Jlaunas) sy} euNsue O SWIE puk g102-51 0z WoJj suns ueld e0Jopuom S Jlouncy) eyl

@

} UlYyIM S[BNPIAIPU] By} PuE diysiepes) s) Jo ANjigeds ey Buipnjou; Ayoeds9 s,Aljue ey} Buidojeaeq "3

palinbal uoijoe
layuny o ‘aosue|dwoo ul sdeb paiyuap)

sa|diouud asurwaAch syl ypm asouridwos BuneliSUCWSP UOEIUSWNDSO]




Page 47

pue JusweBeuew |eisuguy ojjqnd Buohs pus 1G43u09 [euseiy; Jsnqos yBnoily edsusloled pue sysH BuiBeuspyy 3

S5UBULICHEa-|oUNGS,/50Ue0]

E OOWSP-[E00[ATAC eq . ‘89880
180w y) seBrisas pue|Bug pur uopuoT ‘sinoqyBisu eapsyEs yum esueuLoped
ueuno sasedwos osfe Bupiodas eoueuLOyed 8] ejisgem |Iouncy ayy BIA
pajodel pue paioyuow es yoym ‘88Wooino pue sjefue) ‘seroe(qo eduBULIOUed
-Rey| suB|yBIy uely ejziodiog) ey} ‘sseueAioeys Bunuguos Jieyl ainsue 0}

5|SBq 18|NBa. v uo 518888 JO B8N pue souRLLIOued ‘suopeiado smejaay |jouncy eyl

UCHNIISUGS
i I3UNGo-JH0 OOWEP-[E30HTAD I : :uonsuon
813 Jo Jed suuocy} pue peBausw ese slequisw PUEB si8dyj0 usemisq sdiysuonsieu
Buppom pue [euoyrisdo eip moy wisaobB yoiym eoe|d ut sjoaoiosd SBY [IoUnos ayj

"Yylesy esfojdwe ejowoud o} uru

useq eAey s1e4 Bujeqiiep pus yyeeH "eous||dwoa u| sdeb payjjuspt Aus sseippe
0} 808|d U} uB|d uoORORB UB SBY pUR sjusweJnbe. feo0| pue Al0yEs o s1oedse Aoy
Ife sicyuow preog Bujeqiepm pue Asjas ‘yieeH ejriodios §,founc) ey ‘Bujeqjem
felaW pue BaisAyd umo ey Busueuew U s[enpjA|pul Joddns pue solopuom

ey} Jo Buieqjiem pue yyesy ey} uejLBW O} eoe|d uj eue syuewsBueLe Buunsue

ua sesnoo} g1-61.0g ABeegg Bujsqiiep pue yieeH S2.0PUOM S, Jlaunc eyt

‘g)isqam

.[BUBlUI 64} uo peysiand eue yegs |[e 1o} sejBiduse) pue esuspny ‘sangoelqo

UB| S2I0PUOA B3 Uum eul| u| senss; JusweBeuew: ajdoad uo suodel JejnBe.
SeA|908) e|)jiLuLIOD uohBIsUnWeY pue Buyeg ayy ‘sousuuaped pur Juswdopeaep
[euoyss|uefio pue fsucsied uo sesnoay yoiym ‘Ye1s |8 0} ‘ssacoud JuewwabBeusw
8ouBLWoped MBU B ‘,uciBSIBAUCY A, INO PEJja] ||DUNAZ) BYL 2178102 Buung

‘eysgem [Butsiu) sy} uo paysijqnd

(

M

B

palInbsal uonRoe
J8yuny Jo ‘aouelidwos w sdeb paynuap)

se|diound aaueweAob sy yum soueidwos Bunensuowsp uonrawNsog




Page 48

(= Lol aue

“18ay} pelB|nuwIs B 0} puodsel S||ounocd Bo_.._ jo 180] uopuo] ued B 'gL0Z

Ao 1ejeg esjpiexg u| pejedjopsed (jounod ey) ‘glL/210g ul “seek eyy Buunp peuodel

@lom sanss| A}nunuod sseujsng jueoyubls oN ‘ueld AYnunuo) sseu|sng epjm

-Jlouno) el oju| pejeiodioou| e sued A}nuiuad adjeg 18k v eo|m] peiepdn

s yoiym ued Ajnupuos sseusnq B gaanpo.d Bass 8olAIes Yoed ‘gjsAeue Joedw)
SSBUISNQ PUE JUSLLSSBSSE Yysu Uo peseq s) Bujuueld Aynuguod sssuisng s AeBuysH (o

SaURUIGHed-ToUnoY;/aoueul

~pUB-SsUBULIopS0/AoRI50WBp-TEaa)M AGD ASbUHBY AMM//-GHY :alisqem

ey} uo peuodal BJB S8LWOJNO0 PUB SBAI0E[qO eduBLLIOME ‘sunueiBoid ypne

[BnuuR el jo Wad Se ueyBHepuN BB SYsi A6Y JO SMelAB] HPNEB [BLIBju| ‘gueysifial

%Sy U] Ino Jes AES|O S| POLRUBPY! SONSS| PuB S}SU [BNPjAIpU] JO) Ay|qisuodsay

-sBupesw piroq [Buongiado pue diBeais BIA pamelrel AueinBay sy yoee ‘sie}s|Bau
¥su spueog Aloud pue ysu eyeladiod BlA pebausw e $ysy Asy s JIounog eyl (q

-sessaoo.d juswebeusw 1o0ejoud pue Bujuueld sseujsnq Bujpnjoul
'seAnoR sy pue uonasiuefio ey ssaioe pappequue S| juswebeusw ysu 18y}
seinsue ‘sainpacosd pue sessedcud Jo fiepea B yBnauy| ‘8102 Aenuep ,0€ P8y
Bupsew seyjwiwoy aleiodio S,[Iouno) e J8 peussa.d sem pue sjuswebusle
Bupuodes pue esnjonys s,jjounoy ey} 0} sabueyo eysiodioou| o} pejepdn
gBM | *ao8|d u| ABs1eng pue Aaljod uswebeuaiy ySIH siriocioo g sBy AeBuyeH (e
s ]

RiIgEIUN0298 BAI10846 JOAI|ep O} Jpne pus ‘Buipodel ‘AoueuedsusJ) ul sedjjoeid pooB Bupuswe|dwy "5

palinbal uonoe
Jeyuny Jo ‘soue)idwod u) sdeb payiuap)

sa|diouud ssuewanct syl yum soueyduiod BujesUOWSP UOREIUSWNDOJ




Page 49

‘e}isqem eu uo

payuodas ere sswosno esusuwoped ey ‘sywy| 196png ujypm Bujuiswe: pue sBujaes
Bujas|yor o3 paubie AjBuans ese s8LIONO JO AIBAIBP PUB LUORBULIOJSURI | ‘yloq

uo ssaiBaid Bupjory pue suoisod sBulaes pue 1eBpnq su Yioq 18 Bupjool ‘Bunsaw
Miene 18 5186pnq pue eousuy siepisuco praog AlloLd Ydes ‘gL0g Amnige ul
liounog |In4 Aq peacudde Buiaq alojeq ‘sjuep|sas yYMm uo paynsuoo eiem sesodosd
sBulres ey ‘£202 pue g10Z usamied Jeek yoea uopsod 18Bpnq pesuereq B

Jeajfep o} ‘payiuep] eq o} jeA se sbujaes wg' /3 Jeyuny e snid ‘AleAlep Jo} sBujaes
JO WEET Jo (B0} 8 svyguep| S41W eyl ‘sejuoud s, jlouncy ay) Bujaejyoe oy
ABeians BlouBly (280 8y} saune (S41W) ABejBnS [EIouBUIY ULS) wNIpSly By

[N NN] .
:e){sqem s,|19Unos) 8yl uo
peys|iqnd pue jsuiqes) oy} Aq 0} pepuodsal pue Pessnosip AIB SUO|IBPUBLILLIODSS
pue spoded U] "smeiral Ji8y] 0] 8ouasajel Yim sousulcuad 1episuod sjausd
Aupruog enpjalpu| pue siseq Ayeysnb B uo s|eeyA) BOUBULIOLS BY] SMB|ABI OS[B
eajiWWo) AURruog puB Meinea "sesjAes YlBsy SB Yyons ‘[jauno) eyl Aq pepjaaid
jou seopues [8o0| Busiugruos pue j1ounog a8y} jo esusuucyed sy Buimeined ‘sejued
pejsesaiu| Jeyio pue SeunIWos [B20| SSAI0AU| 1BY) Jeuuelt Aed-8s0I 8AISN|oU)
ue uj Aajod Buimeiaes pue Buidojessp “unooos of Jeuiqen ey Buipjoy Aq AeBuypeH
ur AjiqeIuncode aRIsowep pue Bupew uoisioep uado ejowaid 0] SHIOM puB
8§810](0d puB SUCISISEp §,[IPUNCY UL 1B YOO| pajElep B Se)E] AURIUDS puB MejAeA)

81-Gl0g-Ueld

:seAfoe(qo sweolnNo pue ._._m_n_ ejaiodion
BUl U InC 188 8] Yoiym melass uonepuewelduil 1sod Juspusdepu) pua uopnoaxa

‘uoisoyoeds *Bujuueld Buipniou) Ajlsagoaye Aea|iep esiues sioyuow jlouno) eyl (p

paJinbal uocpoe
Jeyuny 1o ‘esuendwoo ul sdeb paynuap

sa|diouud soueweaoh ayl yum aouedwos Buieisucwep uoEUBWNOO(




Page 50

Auoud yByy |y "siseq Auepenb B Uo eslWILLIO) ejeiodio]) 8y} 0} pepodel
8J8 8861} JO SBLUODINO 8L} PUR |1DUNCY BY] SS0IOR S8|N einpaooud JoBIILOD
pue [B]oueUy yim eoue||dwod ¥oeys SMaiAd) JPNE [BLIeixXe pue euisiul Jejnfiey

*SOSSOUNEOM |O4LOD

peyijuep] eWOes S88IPPE 0] 8PBLI BJ8M SUORBPUBLILIOIS) ‘JJoded teyye Aq pesmi
aJam senss| souBweol Jueoyjubis oN “/ 1/8102 Jo} sueded Bupuiom pue sjueLeIEs
[elouBUY jo 188 pook B pepjrcid pey |jounas 8y} yeLl peuode ypne BLBPG
‘sepiwLwoy) eyelodio) aly o] payodal Yjog alem Yaym Jele Ypny enuuy

ey} pue sjodas Ypne [BNUUE esnpoud SI0}PNE [FLUBIXE PUB [BUISIL §,[I0Unon) 8y |

U0 8o} WWIGT) a)slodIos) 1o} epus
‘ajisgem ayl uo aie suodau ay} Jo s81dod ‘SaILILIOY
sjeiodion ey 0} pauocdas pue pejebiseau] 'pamelnel |8 aiem Aojjod Buimolq epsiym
ey} Buisn epsw sfeusyey “Aoljod priey-[ue ey} UM euj| u| suopeo|dde Ang o) Wbl
wejnpney Aequelod gg pejuensid pue 'sejuedoud Jejqns Ajbe) 55 peseacoal
pue pajabiseau JlounocD e ‘gL/210g U| "s|doad AsBuueH pue siensismeu yes
u; paysiiqnd eme pney Jodes o} moy uo sejopJe Jejnbas pue sysgem |IDUNCY) L} Uo
paysjiqnd g Aayod pney-ue sy "Asjjod Buimolg-e)isiym B pue seiojod Buuspuns|
fauow pue Atequq-gue ‘uejd esuodses pney B sepnjou| Aojjod uondnucs pue pnegy
-flue ay| ‘uondniiod pue pnely 0] yoroidde ,eouriajo) 0ie2, B selriado |tounos eyl

-abeys AeS uB IB 81sBORU0) 18Bpnq ey} Jo Aujyruas Jeoyo

Jojues Jeyes.b o} pemoje seY / L/8102 ul sdnaifi-qng esusul4 Apybiupoy meu eyl
jo uonsewedw) sy | uopBuLojy| Juswebauew ebpng Ausienb saaisoel 1puUIgE)
B8Y] puB s18820.0} 198pnq Ajjuow Yywqgns suebBeusyy "uoysod 188png Jueuno

ey} Jo siequeil pue sisBeustll uLoOlU| 0} MBIABS puUB UO|IBULIOJU| JusWwebeuBWw

(]

JejnBau Jo yiomewny B U0 peseq s| JusweBauew EouBUY S,|IPUNncn ey (B

paijinoal uonoe
Jayuny 1o ‘asuedwoo ul sdeb patuap)

s8|diouud sourwsn0b sy} yum souel|dwos BunesSuoWsSp UOIEILBWNDOQG




Page 51

eyl °/10g Amnige4 uj [lounod |in4 pue g10g d8quisAonN u| sspjwiwo) eyeiodion
Wwial} peureiqo sem ssedoud Jusunuiodds pausjeid siy 4o} [encidde i61/81.02 way
sioypne uielxe sy Sugujodde oy sjqisuodsau | jlouncy 8y} 1oy Aujiqejuncooy
8207 ey tepun “Aleanoeys Buneiedo ele seaunosa: JO 88N SY U] 8SBUSBARDBYS
pue Aousioyye ‘Awoucos Buunoes Lay SuswebusLue ey} pue ‘uogisod [ejouBuy
8,[I0UNCT 8U3 JO MB|A LB} PUB Bru) B papjaaid SJLNCIOE By 1BY) pauLyuod oym
‘81/4108 Ul Joypne fewelxe ey woy uojuido peyienbun ue paneoes siy1 ‘2 1/9102
40} '53UNo208 40 JusLelEs sy Auedwasoe o) JJodai [Bnuue ue seonpaud |jounon eyl (u

1J4cGes U] s8dl]a 00! )

"susuped yum sjoocioud Buusys Biep 0} Ayjiqelunoooe pue jo wawdojeasp
8L 1o} |0o0joud meu B peaBe gLoz 1snbBny ul dnoun steoy)o Aloymeg ey (W

:8)isqem sy} :o.nm:m__n:n s

* H any

Agjjod Ayfenb e1Bq ‘18UBAUY) BY) UO paysi|qnd | ese

eouepinb Buioddns pue esey | usweBeuBw spicoal [musueb pue !sieis|Bai 1ossB

UCHBLLIOJU) .10y UCHBULIOJ| JO Wopes. | ‘uojoejoid BlBp pue Ajinoes Buipnjou)
Juswebeuew e1Bp jo 8}98dse SnopBA Yyum Bujjesp ss(ojjod sBY jilouncs ey} {

Ejep DUIGBUBH

"Waded yipny Jo peeH fenuue AlojmEs ey} U] pepn|au] ele spiepue)s Aio1spusL
-Uim aoue|idwioo u) sdeb Aue usweBeueyy ysiy pue upny jo peayH ey} Aq
jusLUSseESE jl8s [Bnuue o} Joe(qns e syuswseBueLe |0uoo [Buwisu) sjlounog eyl (Y

‘L1/910¢2

Ul SeR{ARDE pney-1ejunod eA)loe-cud o} uonejes U| SeLwooinNo eAlisod pajodel pue
'SLORSUN} #PNE O} UCHBJEU L] 80LBJB)8) JO SULIS] S} PelBIny seyiwwoy) eyaiodion
84l "usyeUBpUN &sem s)pne dn Mo||0) usym pejuswie|duwn eq o} punoj siem

Hpne fewey] Aq spew 'sypne sjooyos Bupenaos esoyy Buipnioxs ‘suopepusuIWOe)

paJnbal vonoe
Jeyuny 1o ‘aouedwos i sdeb psyiuep)

sa|diouud souewsaAob sy} yum soueldwos Bunessuowsp uonREURWNY0g




Page 52

Kiln} 8o]Aios JiPNE [BWIG}U] 84} Pus JusLIebeUBI YSiH PUE §PNY jo pesH eyl ([

"81/410Z Ul Bujpuelsino paufBLuel sUON

-pejuswe|du) ere suopspuswwosa fuoud yBly |8 Buunsus uo pauElUBW S| SNJ0)

B ‘sejuwiwon eyriodion 0} papodel ele suolepuswwoosel Bujpuesino |y "siseq
Auspenb e uc salwwo) ejriodion ey) 0} pepode) eJe SjpNe [BuISU JO Seuoano
BY . ‘[IBUNOY By} SSQUIB S8|U eJnpeonud J0B4UCD PUB [BIDUBUL UUM eouslidwon
Bujuodes Bujpnou) 'sjuswwalnbeal Jsoyjo |G| uoloss ey Joddns o} [04U0D

[BLIBIL] JO WaISAS §,[IoUNCD 8L UO 8oURINSEE ep|Acsd JpNE [BLIelxE puB [BulslU| (o]

JI9unog -pUB-00UBULIGHE oD ASDULBY" :

:8sqem oyl uo peys|iqnd ese seAioelqo sepuoud
auy |8 1sueBe eousuuoped pue sewaanQ Auoud 81Biodiod YJEa 10} JBUMO S8

peisoo|[B JebeuBw s|qjsuadsal B Liim UBld s1iodiog ey Buuenyep 1oy} ajqisuodsal

ess spueog ALoud oAy ‘sjuswebusue Aea|ep ueld eyslodio) ey} Jo ued sy (d

-pessepps Bujeq ese /|/910¢ Ul papodel senss eoyubls

'pessaIPPE PUB PauRUSp; 88 $enss| 8due||dwod JO a0UBINSSE U| sdef Aue

JBY] INSUS 0} esyiwiLLcy eji0dios pue dnoiy) sisdyjO Aioyes ayy Aq pemelned

S| SHV 9y} ‘S}UN0ITB JO JuUBLLIBJELS 8Y) U| papn|dul pue souepinb palinbes yum
80UBRIOS2E U| peonpad s| (SDY) JusluelBlS 80UBLIBAOE) [BNUUY §,|[ounc] eyl (o]

00 al(¢ JeqUIBAC BRSO [o]
“uosled Bunuioddy ew sB (yvSd) sjuaugujoddy Hpny 01085

a11qnd Bujsn esioiexs juswe.insoid ps| Jojes B Ul eyediopued o] asoya |jounod

paiinbaJ uonoe
Jayuny Jo ‘souendwod u sdeb psyiusp)

sajdiouud sourwBsA0b ay) yim souelidwod Bunelisucwap uoiELswnaeg




Page 53

‘uonmisucy e Aq papiAcid s| UORBLLLICUI PUB SiaqLIBW
'8182410 0} $8800Y “JUSLISSESTB-J|88 pUB Mejael Jead Aq peouapiae sB ‘SpuBpUElS
HPNY [BLUSIU| 103088 21and N Al0}BpuBLW B Jo SjuBWel|Nbes ey Lum peydwoo

paJjinbal ucpoe
Jeyuny Jo ‘souendwos ul sdeb paiyuap)

sa|diouud souewsAob syl yum eoueldwos Bujensuowsp UOIEILAWINGAg




Page 54

81

‘61/810¢ Ul uojoe
Jo} payepdn pue ssaiboid u|

g210¢ Yorely

‘sjuewalinbal Buysys elsp pue '8pod

Aouesedsurl] ‘suone|nbsy uopEULIOJU| [BUSWUOIAUTUCHBULIOJ|
Jo wopesu4 Bujpnjou| sjuswesnbse: asuewiencH

uopBuULIOJE A8y Jeylo sapnjoul Yoym ‘ess|d uj si ueid Uofjoe Uy

‘8102
u] suofe|nGay ucgoelald Bleq
[euguer) N3 meu ey} Jo} Buuedaid

‘81/810¢ Ul uogoe

810¢ yorey

‘ga)WwWo) ejriodion pue wWnio- S|ooyog ay} 0} payodal

8q [ suejd uonor pue sdn-Mmo|j0} HPNY 'SESSBLESM |QIUCD puB
[BlouBuy ssaippr o} usld uocyoe ue Buidojeasp s ‘wniod s|o0YSS

-S8oUB[E( [BIOUBUL PUB SBLLOIINO
©OURINSSE JIpNE U] UOjjRIOUSISp

1e se) aepdn ssalboid

o} pajepdn pue ssaifioud U| 8y} Yyum uojouniuos uy ‘wea] diysiepes Jojuss s,[1ouncy ayl wesyiubis ‘esousuniopad sjooyos
810¢ yaen
‘8172102 ‘sessawjEem |Q4UO0D pajljuepl
Buunp eeyjwwe?) eyriodion 0} spsw eq |[m sseiBoid uo suodey BLL0S SSEIPPE 0] }ipne [BuwgIXe
-g19|dwon) "SUCHBPUSWILLCSR! 8y} asaippe o} eoed u| s) ueld uofoe uy |  AQ epew esem SUO[BPUBLILLIOISH
8102 YaB\
*18UIqBD 0} 8pBW aq ||m sseiboud
uo suodai senBey *196png peoueeq B Jaayep o) sueld sBujaes
eAjBwe)e Auep] 0} pesu |Im SeojAIes Ly ‘18LW eq JouUEed siebiey
sBujaes g1 1N ausym 1eBpnq peousreq & JeAljep 01 8L/2102 Ul "/1/9102 u| spuadsienc
Ajeanoeye pefisusl ale uolBpaLIWODDY Ariadwe] pue saojues 198pnq rowub|s — s1ebise
‘sje|dwon | [Bjoog Ynpy pue s,uelp||yD ulyim s18Bpng pe|-puslusp 8L ainsu3 sBuines 1IN et jo Aienlieg
(8L0¢ udiew

(110z aunr Qg I8 SB) sulpes( /uoioy paaldy

anss)

‘mojeq

N0 198 81 S|y} UO 8102 YoBN LE 18 Se ssaiBoud pue dn umesp sem ued UOjoB Uy “BAIJOBLS pue oau|d u| auem sjuswebuese eousweA0D

eJnsus o} g1// 102 Ul UeyBMepUN 8q Pinom 3Jom alaym sBese A8y eLios payjuep! |1bunc) eyl *21L/aL0g Ul eousweAcb Jo mainel sy Bumojjod  |p
sanss| eoueuieaob jueaylubis ‘v



Page 55

‘gjg|dwon

‘8102 Uore

"81L/£102 Ul Aleaoeys

Bugeisdo ess Aeyl ULLUCD 0] SBsseD0Id [0ALOD MBU B} MBIAGY [||M
Hpny [Buwsu| :21/8102 ul pejusws|dw aiem sessesoid sjgiodioo
mep ‘sessadold peaiBe yym eouspIODIE Ul @pEW Useq pBY
$8J|AIBS B.NS|eT] pue s)ed U] siejddns pasuoigne 0} sjuswAed
1B einsue 0} uexzuepun Sem einypuadxe JO UORBY||OUCIBS Y

*§80JIBS einsen

PUB S5Bd UIUM UMOp uanoiq
pBYy sesseosoud |onuo9 JuswAied
e)riodiod JBy) peypusep) Jebeusp
a|qeded SJUNOOIY §,IouUNoD ey

‘81/810¢ ul uojjoe
Joj peyspdn pue ssaufiold uj

8i02 Yoy

"eouepinB 9102 sy}

pue seinjonuys souswiencl sprecg Ajuoud meu ey] sioeysl ) 184l
8JNSUB :eduBLIBACE) jrindic) JO BpOY) [BOOT §,||2UNOY 6 8S|AeY

"eouBpInb JOVT10S/V4dID Meu eyl
108yes 0} a3UBWIBACE) B)eiodion)
jo epoY (8207 ay3 Bugepdn

(8102 yaie
e se) aepdn ssasboid

anss|

(2102 3unr 0 Je SB) aulpesq /uondY pae.by




Page 56

S80JN08BY ‘8102 Ae jo e1ep uopsjusws|dusl
pue ey} 1sod Bupepdn annbey jjim 1BUL 0UBLWIBAOD UOBLLIOJU
uopBULIO)SUBRL | ulyum seese Jeljo peyguep: sey sseooud uopaiuswe|du "8102 AB uI suopeinBey
8L02 ‘sssloleny el ‘8102 ABN U 8| of 1o} (HdgD) uopmnBey uopoel0ud uojoejold B8 [eisuey §,N3
Jaquessq 1g J0o§ Joyoalin] BB [BIsuey) §,N3 oy} Bunuewmejdwy Ajeatoe s| jlouno) ey | 8y} yym eoue)dwoo Buunsug
Bujuue|g ‘sde)s jxeu Japisuod
pue uopsieusbey |  pue sisyBioeds Juepuedepu| Aq peyBliuBly senss| ay) ssesse o} ‘e
8102 ‘BuisncH | Aesmuapun sy 30M ‘s1s0) Aeauns feanonys ssed jou pip (euewbBue) | serempec.g 18 sBuipiing Buisnoy
Jequeldes og joJoeld | pue lOyLON) UUB JejeMpBaIg UO SYD0|d Jomo] [eijuapisas om] | [Bjoos omy jo A19)8s ey} sulLg
"SBNURUOD pues] ealisod 8y} einsus 0} paloyuotu "seousfeq [BjousuY
eq 0} enuguo? [iim Bass S|y ‘ewwriBoid ypne sjooyos ey Jo puUB S8LUOYINO SJUBINSSE
8102 | Seoiusg s,usuplyD | Wed se ypns [Bweiu) Aq psubisse saouRINSSe ay} Ul JusweAald; | ypnB U] uoReIouelep jueoyubis
loquieossq |g $0 10084100 ue usadq sBY auey} ‘gL/Z L0z seek miousuy ey} Buung ‘souBuwoled sjooyos
"196pnq 61/8102 8Ly o] pJemuo} palueo Bueq sey) pue
81/210g 10} pepun} eq pjnom uogyscd S| moy paquosep suodel
esay| jefue W/ 0zZ3 B isuebe Wy 3 Jo [[Bluoys peysigse
ue ) sBujaes psuueld g1/ L0Z 84} JO JUBLWBABIYIRIBPUN
weayiubis B 8q pinom eusy) 18y} pesjubodss uloq
iounog ||n4 0} Hodad S 1IN 8y} pue [1oune) o3 Jodas Buyoyuop
¢ saBny sy 'syusiwebuess Buucyuow pue Alenjep s [lounon
teoWo 1518) 8y} jo |18 BuipuBisyUMION ‘61/8102 Ul PausAllep eq 03 uoj||jw
480110 eouBul 913 ey} Jo yed uuaj (Im 18UYL 61/8102 Ol PUBMIQ) DBLUBD BIaM
jelyg wyelu| 7|  sBuiass Jo uoyiw §'63 '91/4 102 Buung *Buipury Ul uogonpal ey}
6102 yome Lg | sousuld jo Joloana | 03 puodsaes o) swweifoid sBuiaes B padojenap sey [jouno)) eyl sBuineg g1 N Jo Aleaileq
a1ep ang Auqisuocdsay ucnoy anss)

. ‘pessalppy Apeudoidds ale senss| |[e aJnsus 0}
Jeeh e Guunp pelopuow eq |m uejd UCHOR By} "moleq uB|d UOIIOB BLY Ui INO 188 8B Bsey) PUB SBaJB 8SeLf) Ul sanssi esusuieAch ey} sseippe
o} sdeis eye} 0} JeaA Bujwos ey} Jeao pesodoud s| Y "gL/2 102 Buunp senss| esuBweAcH soyubls Bumo)|o) ey paynuap| By [DUNoD 8YL 'Y



Page 57

| JeuBAy)
0558%_33u&umfﬁzaéemn___;umﬁu%mos

"eousp|nb
. BOUBLLIBAOK) ‘Juswinocp ey} ‘souspinB g0z 8l} PuUB sRINJONIIS BaUBLIBAGE JOVIOS/VdID meu sl
8102 gjriodio] Spseog Auolid meu ey} sjosyel ) 18Y) ainsus o} payepdn }o8yal o] eouslueA0y) 8leiodio)
Jequedeg Og | J0308u|(q IUEISISBY Bujeq s) esurwency sjBicdios Jo BpOD (8307 S,|IDUNOY BY | 40 epog (B30 ey} Bugepdn
"uodel s}
Ui peujno sujpuy sy} 0} uoEje2 Ul UC|IOE JO esinoo pesodoud
B Jno Bujes puodsa. (M seojAes §,UBIP)IYD JO J0J0RIQ
84 ‘Juewenaidwy Joy seasm payyBiybiy osfe 1nq eonoeid poob “ualp||yo Jo Jo8|Bau pue
10 S8 paypliep] MelAsl o] "uaipliyd Jo Jo8|Beu pue esnqe | esnqe o0} esuodsas AoueBe-jynw
0} esuodseu AsusBe-inuw e Jo uogoedsu Jujof B Yoouepun 8yl Jo uonaedsu| veme peebie
810¢ | Sedineg s,usIpjiy uoneqaid JiNH pue sedjneg enasey g eui4 pue Aejngejsuoy wiof & Bupmoljof seoineg

Jequimedaq g 30 Jopoaui IWH ‘usissjwwog Ayeni eleg ey} 'peIsio '/ LOZ Jequweseq u] | s,uelpiyd Uiym sjusweaosdu)
. ‘pejusLUe|dLll USaq BABl SUO)BpusLULLIOsa]
Hpne [BlsiUl J8 pUB Jun [BRUBPISaL BU] JO QIN3NY BU} Bu|juLialsp
0} usniB Buieq mou s) uoRBIBPISUCS JeyLINy PUB SJUGRISal BU}
40 aiejjom 8L} puenbajes o) ueNe) useq eABy sdelg JUSLIYS||qE}Se
ey} 12 8ooB.d eleo [B1008 JOAO SWSJUCY paesial (JN0)
uoiss|lWog Aieny) eseD Aq mejael @ ‘eyun, ‘sjusweBusue
BouBWeAoB e\ uj sesseuyBem Jusolyubis Bupoipui asurINsse ‘awoH Buisinn
8102 LjesH «[IN.» PeUB|sSE Sem Juewys)qeise eu jo ypne AueinBas | eawn swiogs() JO spuepisal jo
lequisde( Lg | pue sinpy Jojoallq 8} ‘swoH esed Sujsiny ey jo ypne rewejul ue Bumojio | eseo pue sweBBuBW enciduw)
‘PaieAllap
$80.N0S8Y | aJe 8SBD §Seu|sSNg 8y} Ul PRUIRNC SJyausq Bl BINsus O} PesUBLLS
pug eq o} peeu sjusiusbueimp Jwauny "S}S00 6ARS PUB SJUBPISEL "uojBujs| pue uepLuen
uoneuLOSURI | Jc} 83jA8s ey) sauryus ||im Jeyieboy Bupuom sjounoo eaiy 10 8¢ YUM uopounfuoo
2102 ‘slawoisny oLy pefiesiaue s| )| "seainies || pus [eybip pamys io; uojBuys| | ul ezmongsesyul || o uojsiacid
Jjsquesaq |g 104 10308.1Q puB uspwe) Yim diysisuled B ol pessjue sey |Ioincy syt | ewy Joj susweBuaue asuByu]
ajep an Aljiqisuodsay uofoy anss|




Page 58

-Riojorjspes e sueweBusue ueweBsuew sy 1By} pue ‘eoe(d u) sjuswebusus souswenob ejriodiod pue sweisAs joQuo
[BloUBUL [BUISIUI PUNOS @JB EJBL] '8ouUBINSSE N, JO ,pelwi|, Buaeses ssasg asoy) jo uojdsoxe eyl Lum ‘[Iouna) aly} SSCIOB SEeJe SO

U} 8y} papnjauco podas 8y| ‘BL/LL0Z 40} uojuido pue Jodey JphY [Bnuuy Ue pepiacid ose sy juewaBeusiy YsiH PuB UPNY Jo pesH eul  €'G

‘mojeq papiaoid g1 Yodas ey} jo Amewiwns jeas|-ubly v ‘8102 AINr 2 uo sslwwo) ejesodio)
6y} 0} pajuesaud eq |Im suojsnjouco pus sBujpuy sy |8 puB Jpne [Ewe jo dom eyl BupyByubiy Hodes v eonorid peeibe yum
soue|dwos Buinioue Joj pesu ey} pue peyepdn eq o} se:npeocid pue seigjjod ‘se|Beans 1o} peeu euy peybiybiy smejasl jo Jequinu v
‘sseuBoud JOYUOW 0} SBNUKUOS JpNe [BWBlu) PuB ABMUBpUN B sjusweacidw) 1seBBns o} eouspire §) aisy| “sjuewwsAcidw)| Bujustus|dw)
U] JOJUOLL O} SBNURLIOS JPNE [BLISIL] PUB Jeek 1SB| Swesuss Jueoyiubls pas(es s|ooyos JO Jpne 8y “sjuswwaAcidw) eyBw o} juswebeusw
jo uoyoe ydwoud ey} ejou o} peses|d we | pue Juswysyqgelse sy} 18 Bupeiedo s|ouUOS (Blelu] puB Juswebsusw ysu ‘souBweAob
8L JBAO SWIEDUOD PBsiRl 6SNOH Bwnogs) JO MelAss 8y} ‘fejnojed U] "Sees2 BLUOS U] Sesseusaem payjuep] osfe INq ssaulsng |jounco
Jo Auofew ey} U} SEOUBINSSB JO S|eAs| AI010BjSRES pepjacid Wee) Jpne [Bwssiu] Byl JO yiom ey) “TUBWBGEUSY sl Pue JIPNY JO PEsH

*SUORDUNY JEWO

Buuoypuoyy o} uonse: u Jeek sy Buunp paynuep] eiem senssi eauswenoB Jusoyubls oN TEOUBIIBACEH 18Iodio] Jo Jojoalid JUEBISISSY

-suwjd sBuiaes 8y Jo Kiealep ayy yum Buome ‘1ouno) ey Joy sseoaud Aoy & Buleq yseye. ABejang (eloueul uley
WNIPejy B} UM “JeABMOY Sufelues |jounos ey} jo Aynoyup Sujpuny  injonis, euj "sysu fejoueuy Aey aleuew o) 18sys eoueey el
Jo BujueyyBuays ewos yum Buofe ‘siy} peuLucs sey uofisod WINJINO ey ‘eauBeq pund fRieuss Sy ufeuEw pue (si/eeA snojaeld usy}

JBMol) pusdsISAC BoIAISS 158080} 81/Z102 O} SSaIppR PINOM U MOy JeaA S| JO € Jeyend) Ui peyiuep) Jjouno) ey TeSURUI] o Jopaliq e

; :SMOJ|0} SE 8.8 senss] aouBweAcb Ay ey} uo sjusWILWCD JBY| "81//10g Ul senss|
souBlWweAoB o} Buiejes 1oUnoD ey AQ BUOP YJOM BU) PamBine) OSe ABY juelweBeusiy ysiH pPue Jpny Jo peeH oy pue (eowQ Buuoyuow
s,/|ounon) 8Y)) esuBwaACY) ajriodio] JO Jojali(] JUBISISSY Syl 'ejod JeoYO |G| UoRoes Aioymels S,[lounoD Ul Sploy eousuldy Jo Jojoaliq ey|

‘sa]BIO10edsul pue seiousbe
MBJAR) JOLIO pUR SICHPNB [BLIBIXe S,|Iounc) el) Aq epsw sjuswiwoed Aq osfe pueg ‘uodes fenuue sjuewebBUB MS|H PUB PNy JO peESH
ey} ‘JUBLULCIAUG BOUBUIBAOB ey 40 souBuslUBW puB juswdoleAsp ey} 0} Aljiqisucdses 8ABY OUM ‘I0}08Xp JUBISISSE puB Jojoallp Yyoee Aq
SJUBLUSSOSSE-JjOS 8oUBLIBAOB [ENUUE PUB SOURINSSB JO SJUBLIETEIS BY) AQ PBULIjU| Si SSBUBAIIDE)S JO MBIAB) BY| °|0NU0D [BluBll)] Jo wejsAs
sy} Bujpniou uomeusy souBLIBA0B ) JO SSBUBARSAYS BY) JO Mejael B ‘AjBnuue isee| 18 ‘Bujonpuoo Joy Ayliqisuodsal sey |jJaunad ReBuusH

(3]

I'S

SSOUSA[}08)8 JO MBIANBYH G



Page 59

NT%LN

8Allnoaxy ysejyn
8Bpueyig Bu|z







Page 61 Agenda Item 10

Report for: Corporate Committee — 24 July 2018

Item number: 10

Title: Counter Fraud Update Report 2017/18 — Quarter 4
Report

authorised by : Assistant Director of Corporate Governance

Lead Officer: Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management

Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1  This report details the work undertaken by the Counter Fraud Team in the
quarter ending 31 March 2018 and focuses on details of pro-active and reactive
investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities — work
undertaken by the in-house Fraud Team.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The Corporate Committee is recommended to note the counter-fraud work
completed in the quarter to 31 March 2018.

4. Reasons for decision

4.1  The Corporate Committee is responsible for overseeing the Council’'s counter
fraud strategy, and the work of the Counter Fraud team. This progress report
provides, on a quarterly basis, an update on the responsive and pro-active fraud
investigation work of the team.

5. Alternative options considered
5.1 Not applicable.

6. Background information
6.1  The information in this report has been compiled from information held within
Audit & Risk Management.

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes

7.1  The counter-fraud team makes a significant contribution through its pro-active
work in ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control throughout
the Council, which covers all key Priority areas.

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

8.1 Finance and Procurement

Haringey


mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

8.2

8.3

10.

11.
111

Page 62

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by the Fraud Team is funded from within the Audit and Risk
Management revenue budget. The maintenance of a strong proactive and
reaction fraud investigation team is a key element of the Council's system of
Governance.

Leqal
The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted in the

preparation of this report, and advises that there are no direct legal implications
arising from the report.

Equality
The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to
have due regard to:

e tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (formerly
gender) and sexual orientation;

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share those
protected characteristics and people who do not;

o foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and
people who do not.

The in-house counter-fraud team is required to demonstrate a strong
commitment to equality and fairness in their actions and work practices, and
adherence to the Equality Act 2010 and this is built into the team’s operational
procedures. Ensuring that the Council has effective counter-fraud arrangements
in place will assist the Council to use its available resources more effectively.

Use of Appendices
Appendix A — Employee investigation outcomes

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Not applicable.

Performance Management Information

Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local
performance targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. Table
1 below shows the targets for each key counter-fraud area monitored and gives
a breakdown between the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1 Performance measures — counter fraud activity

Ref. | Performance Indicator Q4 | YTD Target
1 Tenancy fraud — properties 16 | 54
recovered secure tenancies 55 50
Tenancy fraud — properties 1 1

Haringey



Page 63

recovered TA

Right to Buy — fraudulent

o 29 | 83 80
applications prevented

12.
12.1

12.2

In-house Counter-Fraud Team: Fraud investigation/Pro-active work
Internal employee investigations

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the in-house Fraud Team
investigates all allegations of financial irregularity against employees.

Quarter 4 investigations
Within Quarter 4, five new cases relating to permanent and temporary
employees were referred to the Fraud Team.
Three cases were completed during the quarter with no evidence to
support the allegations in two of the instances. In the third case (Homes
for Haringey), there was evidence of irregularities, and the matter was
referred to management for consideration of next steps.
Two of the cases remain under investigation.
A total of five cases, including those carried forward from previous
guarters, remain in progress at the end of Q4 and will be carried forward
to Q1 2018/19.
There have been 18 Disciplinary Hearing outcomes reported to Corporate
Committee in the financial year to date. These are shown at Appendix A.

The Fraud Team work closely with officers from HR and the service area
involved to ensure that the investigation is completed as quickly as possible.

Tenancy Fraud — Council properties

In 2017/18, the numbers of referrals received, investigations completed and
properties recovered to date by the Fraud Team are summarised below.

2017/18 — Referrals received

Brought forward from 2016/17 93
Referrals received in 2017/18 197
Total referrals received for

investigation 290

2017/18 Outcomes

Properties Recovered 55
No Fraud identified 125
Total cases concluded 180
Ongoing Investigations *110

*See Note 1 below

Note 1: Of the 110 ongoing investigations; 42of these cases (38%) are where
tenancy fraud has been identified and court proceedings were in progress as at
31 March 2018. The property will be included in the ‘recovered’ data when the
keys are returned and the property vacated.

The Fraud Team liaise with Legal Services on individual cases to ensure these
are progressed as quickly as possible within the statutory timescales. For the
ongoing investigations where tenancy recovery is in progress, the status of the

Haringey



Page 64

tenancy has been investigated and the case is either: awaiting a Court Hearing;
the Particulars of Claim are with Legal Services; an NTQ is awaiting expiry; a
succession application has been refused and the tenant is awaiting an offer of
smaller accommodation; or the rent account is showing an ‘Unauthorised
Account’ on the Housing database.

The Fraud Team works with Homes for Haringey (HfH) to target and investigate
housing and tenancy fraud, which forms part of HfH’s responsibilities in the
Management Agreement. HfH have confirmed that they will continue to provide
1 FTE officer to work with the Fraud Team on a long term basis to assist with
the tenancy fraud work.

The Fraud Team will continue to work with HfH to identify the most effective use
of fraud prevention and detection resources across both organisations to enable
a joined up approach to be taken, especially where cases of multiple fraud are
identified e.g. tenancy fraud, and right to buy fraud.

12.3 Pro-active counter-fraud projects

During 2017/18, the Fraud Team have continued with a number of pro-active
counter-fraud projects in areas that have been identified as a high fraud risk.
Progress reports on this work will be reported to the Corporate Committee
during the year; the findings and outcomes are all shared with service
managers as the projects are delivered.

12.3.1 Gas safety — execution of warrant visits

The Fraud Team accompany warrant officers on all executions of ‘warrant of
entry’ visits where it is suspected that the named tenant is not in occupation.

Further to the outcomes reported to Corporate Committee at Q3 (December
2017), the Fraud Team have assisted with 56 Gas Safety warrants of execution
in Q4 (170 in the financial year). In the financial year, twenty-two (22) of the 54
secure properties recovered through Tenancy Fraud can be attributed in whole
or part to ongoing investigations by the Fraud Team.

A further sixteen (16) properties are under continued investigation and the
outcomes will be reported as properties are recovered.

Haringey



Page 65

12.3.2Keys

Following Gas Warrant interventions and particularly where there has been a
forced entry, but keys have not been collected; the Fraud Team have begun
working with:

(i) Gathered evidence

(i) Homes for Haringey (HfH) Tenancy Management data

(i) HfH Repairs Team records and matching with public information to
establish genuine occupancy details. Where discrepancies are noted, tenancy
fraud recovery action will be taken.

12.3.3 Regeneration

The Fraud Team are now working with the Regeneration Team to review
tenancies (both secure and Temporary Accommodation) to assist in:

(i) The decanting and re-locating of displaced tenants on Regeneration estates,
and

(i) Leaseholders who are in negotiation to have their homes bought back.

To date the Fraud Team have prevented one fraudulent application to decant
an individual to a larger property than needed and prevented one fraudulent
application to have a home brought back as a resident, rather than a non-
resident leaseholder.

12.3.4 No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF)

In November 2017, the NRPF team received a Final Report following an
Internal Audit, where they received Limited Assurance. One of the
recommendations was that the NRPF team work with the Fraud Team at initial
interview, or screening stage of an application. It is expected that this will
resume in 2018/19.

As at Q4, eighty-one (81) referrals had been received and responded to by the
Fraud Team through the financial year. It can be reported that in at least 35
instances (43%) the Fraud Team intervention has averted a fraudulent
application and/ or either financial or accommodation support being given.

The average cost of NRPF support per family (accommodation and subsistence
for a 2 child household) is around £20,000 pa; the interventions of the Fraud
Team has therefore saved the Council £700,000 in support and accommodation
costs, which may otherwise have been awarded where there was, in fact, no
eligibility for assistance.

The project will be carried forward into the Fraud Workplan 2018/19, where
advice, support and assistance to NRPF will continue and enhanced recording
and monitoring of outcomes will be established.

Haringey



Page 66

12.3.5 Tenancy Fraud Mapping

In the financial year 2017/18, the properties recovered have been mapped
across the Borough by (i) postcode and (ii) bedroom size. The results are tabled
below:

(i) by Postcode

Postcode Area No.
Recovered
N17 Tottenham 28
N22 Wood Green 13
N15 Haringey 6
N6 Highgate 3
N8 Hornsey / Crouch End 3
N4 Stoud Green 1
N11 Bounds Green 1
Total 55
ii) by Bedroom size
b/room Property type
size
Flat Mais House Total
1 19 2 - 21
2 4 1 8 13
3 1 3 13 17
4 - - 4 4
Total 24 6 25 55

12.4 Right-to-buy (RTB) applications

The team currently has approximately 293 ongoing applications under
investigation. The team reviews every RTB application to ensure that any
property where potential tenancy, benefit or succession fraud is indicated can
be investigated further. In the year to date, the numbers of tenants applying to
purchase their properties under the Right to Buy legislation has reduced as
valuations continue to rise.

In 2017/18, 81 applications (29 in quarter 4) have been withdrawn or refused
either following the applicants’ interview with the Fraud Team, further
investigations and/or failing to complete money laundering processes.

12.5 Financial Values 2017/18

Tenancy Fraud — council stock and temporary accommodation: The Audit
Commission valued the recovery of a tenancy, which has previously been
fraudulently occupied, at an annual value of £18,000, relating to average
Temporary Accommodation (TA) costs. No new national indicators have been
produced; therefore although this value is considered low compared to potential
TA costs if the property has been identified as sub-let for several years, Audit
and Risk Management continue to use this figure of £18k per property for
reporting purposes.

Haringey



Page 67

In 2017/18 to date, 55 council stock properties have been recovered through
the actions and investigations of the Fraud Team; therefore a total value of
£990k can be attributed to the recovery, or cessation, of fraudulent council and
temporary accommodation tenancies.

Right to Buy Fraud: Overall, the 81 RTB applications withdrawn or refused
represent over £8.4m in potential RTB discounts; and means the properties are
retained for social housing use.

12.6 Whistleblowing Referrals
The Head of Audit and Risk Management maintains the central record of
referrals made using the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. One referral was
made in Quarter 4, which related to an investigation already known and in
progress with the Fraud Team. Regular reminders are provided for staff on how
to raise concerns and use the Whistleblowing Policy; the latest reminder was
issued in the July 2017 ‘In Haringey’ staff newsletter. A copy of the policy is also
held on the Council’s intranet and website.

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

IN HOUSE AUDIT — IRREGULARITIES INVESTIGATED 01/04/17- 31/03/18 (Q4) includes c/f from 2016/17

Directorate Irregularity Type No. of cases | No. of cases No. of Officers Disciplinary Outcome | Value (£)
investigated proven at subject to (if known)
31/03/2018 Disciplinary
Investigation
Homes for Fraudulent Housing App .
Haringey 1 0 0 employee re-instated
Comm_erual & | Misuse of blue badge 1 1 1 Dismissed
Operations
Deputy Chief Tenancy Fraud 1 0 0 None
Exec Service Manager action
Deputy Chief Bringing the Council into None
: 1 0 0 : :
Exec disrepute Service Manager action
Commercial & | Bribery 1 0 0 None
Operations Service Manager action
Commercial & | Misuse / abuse of . . .
; o 1 1 1 Final written warning
Operations position
Deputy Chief Working outside of remit 1 1 1 Dismissed
Exec
Commgrual & | Misuse of position 1 1 1 Resigned
Operations
Comm_erC|aI & | No right to work in UK 1 1 1 Resigned
Operations
Deputy Chief Abuse of position 1 1 1 Resigned
Exec
Commercial & | Fraudulent sick note Dismissed
. 1 1 1
Operations
Deputy Chief Non declaration of 2™ None
. 1 0 0 . .
Exec job Service Manager action
Deputy Chief Misuse of position and IT None
1 0 0 . :
Exec Service Manager action
Regen, Planning | Abuse of position- 1 0 0 None
&Development bribery Service Manager action
Commercial & | Dishonesty and misuse 1 0 0 None

69 abed

T Xipuaddy



APPENDIX A

IN HOUSE AUDIT — IRREGULARITIES INVESTIGATED 01/04/17- 31/03/18 (Q4) includes c/f from 2016/17

Directorate Irregularity Type No. of cases | No. of cases No. of Officers Disciplinary Outcome | Value (£)
investigated proven at subject to (if known)
31/03/2018 Disciplinary
Investigation
Operations of IT Service Manager action
Homes for Key Selling None
- 1 0 0 . .
Haringey Service Manager action
Homes for Fraudulent sickness / Resigned / Dismissed
: \ 1 0 0
Haringey misuse of IT
Homes for Fraudulent sickness / :
: . 1 0 0 employee re-instated
Haringey misuse of IT
TOTAL 18 7 7

CF Update Report (internal) Q4 2017-18 - Appendix A (no initials)

0/ abed



Page 71 Agenda Iltem 11

Report for: Corporate Committee — 24 July 2018

Item number: 11

Title: Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy

Report

authorised by : Assistant Director of Corporate Governance
Lead Officer: Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management

Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1  As part of the 2017 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS),
Haringey Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate processes in place
for the reporting and investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption.

1.2 The Corporate Committee is responsible for Anti-fraud and Corruption
arrangements as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to provide assurance
that the corporate policy is consistent with relevant regulations and other best
practice requirements, it is reviewed on a regular basis.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1  Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Corporate Committee reviews and endorses the Corporate Anti-fraud
and Corruption Strategy together with the appended Fraud Response Plan,
Whistle-blowing Policy, Sanctions Policy, Anti-money Laundering Policy and the
Anti-bribery Policy.

4. Reasons for decision
4.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Anti Fraud
and Corruption Strategy under its Terms of Reference.

5. Alternative options considered
5.1  Not applicable.

Haringey


mailto:minesh.jani@haringey.gov.uk

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Page 72

Background information

Haringey Council seeks to maintain high standards of probity and has put in
place arrangements for protecting the public purse. Sound systems to
demonstrate public accountability are also vital for effective management of
services and in maintaining public confidence; the minimisation of losses from
fraud and corruption is essential for ensuring resources are used for their
intended purpose.

To investigate frauds and corruption the Council has a dedicated Corporate
Anti-Fraud Team comprising the Fraud Manager and seven investigators who
undertake pro-active and reactive work across all areas of the Council’s
activities. Generally, local authorities have invested in London in particular,
have invested in anti fraud work consistently over many years following
guidance and advise from regulatory bodies including the former Audit
Commission, CIPFA, the Cabinet Office and by the National Fraud Authority in
their ‘Fighting Fraud Locally’ publications.

The Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy gives guidance to relevant
individuals, employees, Councillors, members of the public and organisations
working in partnership with the Council, on the Council’s stance on Fraud and
Corruption and the steps people should take if they suspect fraud and
corruption. The strategy also sets out how the Council will deal with any
allegations.

Essentially, the strategy states the Council has a zero tollarance to fraud and
corruption and the Council will use the full range of sactions to act against
individuals or organisations found to be committing fraud against the Council.

The Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy and the related appendices
are published on the Haringey website and intranet site. In addition, all polices
are published separately to enable anyone searching for the individual policy to
locate these easily. The website pages also provide details of how to report
suspected cases of fraud and corruption.

The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance is the responsible officer for
maintaining the Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy, together with all related
policies: Whistleblowing, Sanctions, Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-bribery.
The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Audit and Risk
Management review all anti-fraud and corruption policies to ensure they reflect
current legislation and recommended best practice.

The review of the Whistleblowing policy is undertaken in consultation with the
Assistant Director for Human Resources to ensure all relevant employment
issues are incorporated into any changes to the policy.

The Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy follows the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) guidance and best practice
recommendations. The Council’s Whistle-blowing policy conforms to the best

Haringey



8.1

8.2

8.3

10.

Page 73

practice guidance issued by Public Concern at Work, the independent
charitable organisation which advises on whistle-blowing and governance
matters.

Contribution to strategic outcomes

The Council has an important role to demonstrate stewardship of the public
purse. The management of fraud risks is an important part of the Council’s
work to unable the Council to utilise its resources to achieve its corporate aims.

Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The strategies
will be implemented within existing agreed budgets.

Legal

The Assistant Director, Corporate Governance has been consulted in the
preparation of this report, and in noting that the policies, plan and strategy
follow legislative requirements / industry guidance and best practice, has no
comments.

Equality
There are no direct equality implications for the Council’s existing policies,

priorities and strategies as a result of this report. However, ensuring that the
Council has effective anti fraud and corruption arrangements in place and
taking appropriate action to improve these where required will assist the Council
to use its available resources more effectively.

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 — Fraud Response Plan
Appendix 2 — Whistleblow Policy

Appendix 3 — Sactions Policy

Appendix 4 — Anti Money Laundering Policy
Appendix 5 — Anti Bribery Policy

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Not applicable.

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75 Appendix 1

Hdringey

HARINGEY COUNCIL

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
POLICY AND STRATEGY

July 2018 1



Page 76

haringey

OFFICIAL

Policy History

Version | Summary of Contact Implementation | Review | EQIA
Change Date Date Date
8.1 Added Standards | Head of Audit | July 2018 June June
in Public Life & Risk 2018 2014
(Nolan Principles) | Management
at para 3.2

Links and Dependencies

Employee Code of Conduct
Disciplinary Procedures
Council Constitution
Whistleblowing Policy
Sanctions Policy

Anti-money Laundering Policy
Anti-bribery Policy

Related Forms

Declaration of Interests Form

Declaration of Receipt of Gift or Hospitality

July 2018




Page 77

dringey

OFFICIAL LONDON

Section Page
1. Anti-fraud Policy Statement and Contact details 4
2. Definitions of Fraud and Corruption 6
3. Responsibilities of Councillors, Managers and Employees 7
4. Preventing, Detecting and Investigating Fraud and Corruption 9
5. Monitoring 10

Appendix 1 — Fraud Response Plan

Appendix 2 — Whistleblowing Policy

Appendix 3 — Sanctions Policy

Appendix 4 — Anti-money Laundering Policy

Appendix 5 — Anti-bribery Policy

July 2018




Page 78
| |
haringey
OFFICIAL LONDON

Anti-fraud Policy Statement

1.1 We (Haringey Council) operate a ‘zero tolerance’ approach towards fraud and
corruption and we will use the full range of sanctions available against any individual
or organisation found to be committing fraud. Every pound taken by theft or fraud
reduces our ability to provide services to the people who need them the most.

1.2 We want to protect against, detect and respond to fraud and corruption in order to
protect the interests of our clients, partners, employees and other stakeholders while
retaining a high ethical standing within the community.

1.3 This policy applies to all parts of the Council and to all our employees, temporary and
agency staff, volunteers, contractors and consultants in relation to their work with/for
us. We rely on the support of staff, businesses and the community to deliver the
services we provide to people in need. Loss of confidence in the Council as a result
of fraud or corruption could have an adverse impact on our funding and investment
in the area, leading to a more severe impact on the services we deliver than the
initial theft.

1.4 We expect all our Councillors, employees, agency and temporary staff, consultants,
contractors, partner organisations and service users, to be honest, and to give us
any help, information and support we need to deal with fraud and corruption. In
return, we will:

Take appropriate measures to prevent and deter fraud;

Introduce and maintain procedures to detect fraud;

Encourage employees to report any suspicions of fraud;

Provide resources to train our staff about fraud risk and investigate fraud;
Take appropriate disciplinary, civil or criminal proceedings; and

Report suspected fraud to the police and all relevant organisations.

1.5 ltis in everyone’s interests to prevent fraud and corruption from happening. Report
any suspected incident immediately to your manager and to the Head of Audit & Risk
Management (unless you suspect your manager may be involved). This strategy and
response plan sets out what we mean by fraud; how we tackle fraud; what you
should do if you suspect fraud; and how we will respond.

July 2018 4



Page 79

dringey

OFFICIAL LONDON
If you have any concerns about fraud, we want to know:
s
Call in confidence: 0330 808 4269
(C"D\’r
SPEAK OUT Email: fraudcall@Haringey.gov.uk
ABOUT
FRAUD gWrite to: Fraud Team, PO Box 22727, London, N22 7WS

July 2018



mailto:fraudcall@Haringey.gov.uk

Page 80

haringey

OFFICIAL

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy

2. Definition of Fraud and Corruption

2.1 The Fraud Act 2006 introduced the first legal definitions of fraud, which is used for
the criminal prosecution of fraud offences. Fraud is defined a wrongful act or criminal
deception intended to result in financial or personal gain. Corruption is defined as
the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward, which may
influence the action of any person.

2.2 The following are some examples of fraud or corruption, which you may come
across:

e Providing false identity or right to remain/work documents, references, or any
other information when applying for a job;

e Making false claims for expenses, overtime, flexitime, or any other allowance;

e Not declaring a conflict of interest e.g. owning properties which are leased to the
Council, or receiving benefits from the Council; you or your family owning
companies which we do business with; or working for organisations which receive
grant funding from the Council;

¢ Allocating housing, or any other benefits, to people who are not entitled to them;

e Misusing Blue Badges, residential, business or any other parking permits;

e Fraudulently claiming any benefits we the DWP or HMRC provide, including
housing benefits, working/child tax credits, disability benefits, and council tax
benefits;

e Fraudulently making, or exaggerating, an insurance claim against the Council;

e Using our vehicles, IT equipment, offices/buildings, stocks, materials, or any other
resources for personal use, or to run a private business;

e Stealing money, materials or other resources from the us, our partners, or our
clients;

e Raising orders, or submitting invoices for payment when the work hasn’t been
done;

e Working for another organisation, running a business, or being self-employed
during contracted hours, including working whilst off sick;

e Accepting gifts or hospitality from contractors, or organisations who are bidding for
work, or who we have contracts with, or who receive grants from us.

2.3 The above list can’t cover every example of fraud or corruption. If you have any
qguestions, please contact the Head of Audit & Risk Management for further advice.

3. Responsibilities

July 2018 6



Page 81

Hdringey

3.1 We expect all individuals, groups and organisations that receive services from, or

provide services on behalf of the Council to be honest in their dealings with us and
our clients and customers. Councillors and managers are expected to lead by
example in regard to observing the Principles of Standards in Public Life, as set out
by the Nolan Committee. These are shown below:

Selflessness- Holders of public office take decisions in terms of the public interest.
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for
themselves, their family or their friends.

Integrity- Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in
their performance of their official duties.

Objectivity- In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of
public office should make choices on merit.

Accountability- Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and
actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate
to their office.

Openness- Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the
decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions
and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

Honesty- Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating
to their public duties to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that
protects the public interest.

Leadership- Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by
leadership and example

3.2 We expect our Councillors and employees, including any temporary, agency and

consultancy resources, to lead by example in preventing, deterring and advising of
suspected fraud and corruption and these responsibilities are summarised below:

Individual/Group | Role/Responsibility

Corporate e Approving and monitoring corporate counter-fraud policies.
Committee e Reviewing reports relating to fraud risks and investigations
from internal and external auditors.

July 2018 7




OFFICIAL

Page 82

haringey

Individual/Group

Role/Responsibility

Strategic
Leadership Team
(SLT)/ Statutory
Officers Group
(SOG)

Overseeing the council’s approach to counter-fraud activity,
setting the tone to embed a culture of high standards.
Ensuring a consistent approach to identifying and managing
fraud risk is adopted by all service areas.

Reviewing reports to ensure that risks relating to fraud are
being managed appropriately.

Directors/ e Introducing and maintaining effective controls to prevent fraud
Assistant or corruption from happening in their service area, or
Directors/ corporate programme.
Programme e Ensuring that a fraud or corruption risk assessment has been
Managers/ Heads conducted for their service area/ corporate programme.
of Service e Notifying all suspected fraud or corruption incidents within
their service area/ programme to the Head of Audit & Risk
Management.
e Approving follow up action to be taken in response to actual
incidents of fraud or corruption.
Audit & Risk e Undertaking regular assessments of fraud risks and the
Management resources and skills available to tackle fraud.

Consulting with Directors/Assistant Directors about the best
course of action when suspected fraud or corruption incidents
are raised.

Allocating an investigator, consulting with appropriate senior
managers and HR personnel at agreed stages during any
investigation into fraud or corruption, and completing the
investigation within agreed timescales.

Notifying the police, and other organisations, when a criminal
prosecution is required.

Facilitating fraud and corruption awareness training.
Providing regular reports to SLT/SOG and Corporate
Committee on fraud risks and pro-active and responsive
investigations.

Providing advice and guidance on internal controls to prevent
fraud or corruption.

Undertaking pro-active projects to identify possible fraud or
corruption.

Employees and
Members

Complying with the Council’s Codes of Conduct and
Constitution.

Informing their manager, or Assistant Director and Head of
Audit & Risk Management of any suspected fraud or
corruption incidents.

4. Our approach to preventing, detecting and investigating fraud and corruption

July 2018 8




Page 83

Hdringey

We have aligned our fraud prevention and detection approach to the government’s
recommended ‘acknowledge, prevent, pursue’ strategy in their Fighting Fraud
Locally publications and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s 2014 ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption’ Code of Practice.

4.1 Preventing fraud and corruption
We want to try and prevent fraud and corruption from happening in the first place. In
order to do this our strategy includes:

Undertaking a regular assessment of the fraud risks faced by the Council and
ensuring our managers and counter-fraud teams carry out checks on high risk
areas;

Completing pre-employment screening of our staff (including volunteers,
contractors and consultants) and confirming their right to remain and work in the
UK, where appropriate;

Requiring staff to declare potential conflicts of interest; and any gifts offered and
accepted,;

Scanning and verifying identity documents of all applicants for housing and other
benefits;

Making sure quotes and tenders from contractors are opened by different
employees to those who asked for the quotes; and

Controlling our IT systems e.g. to ensure that individual employees are not
responsible for setting up and authorising payments.

4.2 Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption
As well as having systems in place to prevent fraud, we have procedures that detect
and investigate fraud effectively which include:

Fraud reporting mechanisms such as the confidential Freephone telephone
number, PO Box address and email facility;

Whistleblowing, Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-bribery policies, together with
our complaints process, and regular reviews of personnel and financial
information e.g. on Right to Buy applications;

An annual counter-fraud plan which includes projects to look at high risk and high
spend areas based on the overall risk assessment;

Undertaking regular data matching and analysis of information held on our
systems to identify e.g. fraud in housing tenancies, payroll and pensions, Blue
Badges, planning applications and payments to suppliers;

Sharing information on identified frauds and risks with other local authorities and
agencies, including the police, Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), and
the Home Office visa and immigration services;

Receiving regular data analysis and fraud information alerts from the National
Anti-Fraud Network;

Having a dedicated and suitably trained counter-fraud team in place, with links to
the police and other enforcement agencies, to investigate allegations of fraud and
undertake prosecutions.

July 2018 9


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/fighting-fraud-locally-the-local-government-fraud-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/fighting-fraud-locally-the-local-government-fraud-strategy

Page 84

Hdringey

4.3 The anti-fraud and corruption strategy should be read in conjunction with our Fraud
Response Plan (Appendix 1) which sets out how we tackle the risk of fraud and
investigate allegations of fraud; and the Council's Whistleblowing Policy (Appendix
2), which is intended to encourage and enable employees to raise serious concerns.

4.4We will use all sanctions available to us to deal with anyone committing fraud or
corruption, including referring cases to the police, prosecuting offenders and seeking
recovery of monies and/or other assets obtained by fraud or corruption. Our
Sanctions Policy is attached (Appendix 3), which describes the process in more
detail.

4.5We also have arrangements in place where any instances of suspected money
laundering or bribery are reported. Our Anti-money Laundering Policy (Appendix 4)
explains what money laundering is, and what we do to manage the risks associated
with crime and money laundering. Our Anti-bribery Policy (Appendix 5) explains the
legal position for the Council and employees; and how to report any concerns.

4.6 This strategy is aligned with the Council’'s Code of conduct and HR policies which
require employees to declare any potential conflicts and any gifts or hospitality
offered. The strategy is also consistent with the Council’s IT Security Policies.

5. Monitoring

5.1 This policy and the appendices are monitored and reviewed on an annual basis. We
will consult with all the relevant services areas to ensure that all relevant legal,
financial and personnel issues are included in the review processes.

5.2 The Council’'s Corporate Committee has overall responsibility for this policy and it is
presented to the Committee for its approval when any review takes place.

July 2018 10



Page 85 Appendix 2

~ Haringey

OFFICIAL
Fraud Response Plan

1. Why we have a Fraud Response Plan

1.1 Reports in the media suggest fraud is on the increase although fraud is not usually
an everyday occurrence and most people are surprised to discover a potential fraud
issue. Knowing what to do and taking the right steps when the fraud is discovered
allows us to make sure the investigation is carried out properly.

1.2 Having a structured response plan helps everyone to handle any fraud issues in the
same way and avoid potential problems like: inadvertently tipping off the suspect,
enabling them to destroy incriminating evidence; failing to keep the matter
confidential; and taking inappropriate action caused by having insufficient
information.

1.3 A Fraud Response Plan ensures that incidents are handled in a systematic and
efficient manner, not only to conclude a successful investigation, but also to show
that the organisation acted in an effective and lawful manner; and that it does not
tolerate fraud.

2. What you should do if you suspect fraud or corruption

2.1 Our employees and councillors are often the first to realise when things may be
going wrong, or fraud and corruption may be taking place. However, they may think
that they would not be supported if they raised their concerns, or they may even be
afraid of being harassed or bullied. In these circumstances, an individual may feel it
would be easier to ignore their concerns, rather than report it. We want to tell you
that this is not the case.

2.2 Our ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy is in place to encourage and enable individuals to raise
legitimate concerns, rather than overlooking a problem. The policy applies to all
Haringey employees, staff of Council contractors, agency staff and trainees.

2.3 If you suspect fraud or corruption, you should raise your concern with your line
manager. Failing that, you should approach your Head of Service, or Assistant
Director. If you cannot raise your concern within your own service area, you should
approach the Head of Audit & Risk Management.

2.4 We want to encourage any member of the public, or a partner organisation, who
suspects fraud and corruption to contact the Council’s Head of Audit and Risk
Management in the first instance.

2.5 Remember: tell some-one, don'’t keep it to yourself; make a note of anything which
made you think a fraud was happening; keep things confidential initially; do not
confront the suspect(s); only take away any evidence if there is any risk that it will
be destroyed or thrown away. Leave the investigation to Audit & Risk
Management.

July 2018 Page 1 of 2



Page 86
APPENDIX 1

|
OFFICIAL LONDONH 7
3. Investigations into allegations of fraud or corruption

Although we cannot say how each individual case is dealt with, the following

process is outlined as a general guide.

Fraud happens (or is suspected) by an employee

L

Issue(s) raised with a line manager, Director/Assistant Director

-

Referral made to Head of Audit & Risk Management (first stage for the public)

e

Risk assessment and initial fact finding review takes place by Audit & Risk

Management
Financial issues identified No financial issues identified
Case conference is held with investigator, HR Case closed, or referred for

and Assistant Director, to agree the next steps. management investigation/follow
Formal investigation commences — a referral to up if other (non-financial) issues
the police may be made at this stage. are identified.

<

Investigator (or investigation team) is allocated to undertake the work and report
within agreed timescales

Il

Conclusion of investigation and report to management (including any
recommended changes to controls)

v
Disciplinary action taken where appropriate

. - v -
Prosecution action taken where appropriate

v

Loss recovery procedures started where appropriate

July 2018 Page 2 of 2



Page 87 Appendix 3

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDON

Whistleblowing Policy

1. What is ‘Whistleblowing’?

1.1 Whistleblowing encourages and enables employees to raise any serious concerns
they may have, rather than overlooking a problem. Serious concerns include: criminal
activity; not complying with legal requirements; miscarriages of justice; putting an
individual's health or safety at risk including residents, clients and members of the
public; and damage to the environment.

1.2 Employees are often the first to realise that there is something wrong within the
Council. However, they may be reluctant to say anything or raise their concerns as
they feel that speaking up would be disloyal to their colleagues or to the Council; or
they may feel that they would be victimised for doing so.

1.3 The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA) offers all employees legal protection
against any detriment, or unfair dismissal, as the result of speaking out about crime,
fraud, miscarriages of justice, dangers to health and safety, breaches of civil service
code or risks to the environment.

2. Our Commitment

2.1 We are committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability. In line with that commitment we expect employees, and others that we
deal with, who have serious concerns about any aspect of our work to come forward
and tell us about those concerns.

2.2 If any employee raises their concerns in the public interest (not for personal gain) and
they reasonably believe that the information they are giving is true and in good faith,
our Whistleblowing policy aims to ensure that they receive support; and their
concerns are properly investigated and addressed.

2.3 We will publicise this policy across the Council on a regular basis, so all our staff are
aware of the support available and what is required of them.

3. Who does the Policy apply to?

3.1 The policy applies to all our employees. This includes temporary and agency staff,
‘as and when’ employees, authorised volunteers or work experience staff. It also
applies to contractors working for us on our premises e.g. agency staff, builders, and
drivers. It also covers suppliers and those providing services under a contract with us
in their own premises, for example, care homes and children’s centres. The policy
also covers our Members.

3.2 This policy has been shared with the relevant trade unions and professional
organisations and has their support.

July 2018 Page 1 of 6



Page 88
APPENDIX 2

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDON

4. Our aims

e To encourage everyone to feel confident in raising concerns; and to act upon
their concerns about potential wrongdoing;

e To provide ways for all staff to raise concerns in confidence and receive
appropriate feedback on any action taken;

e To ensure that staff receive a response to their concerns; and that staff are
aware of how to pursue them if they are not satisfied; and

e To reassure everyone they will be protected from possible reprisals, or
victimisation, if they have a reasonable belief that they have made a disclosure,
which is in the public interest.

5. How to raise a concern

5.1 As a first step, any concerns should normally be raised with your immediate
supervisor/manager. However, if the concern is serious, relates to a sensitive matter,
or your line manager may be involved, you should approach a senior manager, or
Assistant Director/Director within your service area.

5.2 Our Financial Regulations state that the Head of Audit and Risk Management should
be told of any concerns that relate to financial or accounting irregularities or
suspected irregularities. This policy allows the opportunity to raise your concerns
about any financial matters directly to the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

5.3 If your concern is not about financial issues, you may also raise it with the Assistant
Director for Human Resources; or the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance
(the Council’s Monitoring Officer).

5.4 PIDA encourages staff to approach their employer in the first instance: this way you
are legally protected; and any subsequent disclosure of the same information you
make externally will be protected. However, the government advises that if you felt
that your employer would cover your concerns up, or would treat you unfairly, or they
have not resolved the issue when they have been told about it previously; you can
make a referral to a ‘prescribed person’ and some examples of these are listed at the
end of this policy.

5.5 Alternatively, you could ask your Trade Union to raise the matter on your behalf; or
seek advice from your professional organisation, if you are a member of one.

5.6 Other procedures are available, for example the Grievance procedure which relates
to complaints about your own employment. This policy also does not replace other
corporate complaints procedures, which are for public use.

6. How we will respond to concerns raised under this policy
6.1 We will aim to review your concerns and complete any investigations required as
quickly as possible. It is not possible to say how every concern will be treated but as
a general guide, within ten working days of the concern being raised, we will:
e Assess the complaint and identify the most effective process to use to investigate
the allegations raised;

July 2018 Page 2 of 6



Page 89
APPENDIX 2

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDON

e Notify the Head of Audit and Risk Management that a concern has been raised to
ensure it is recorded properly in accordance with this policy;

e Write to the person raising the concern (as long as the concern has not been
raised anonymously) to acknowledge their complaint and indicate how the matter
raised will be dealt with;

e Indicate a likely timescale to complete the investigation; and

e Provide individuals with information on staff support mechanisms that are
available.

7. Confidentiality — Protection for Whistleblowers

7.1 We want to protect anyone who raises a concern; including keeping their identity
confidential if this is what the employee wants. All concerns will be treated in
confidence and we will make every effort not to reveal people’s identity, but please
consider that we may need to provide a witness statement if the matter is subject to a
disciplinary process, or referred to the police.

7.2 This policy encourages you to put your name to your concern whenever possible.
Please note that:

Staff must believe the disclosure of information is in the public interest;

Staff must believe it to be true;

Staff must not act maliciously; or knowingly make false allegations; and

Staff must not seek any personal gain.

8. Safeguards and Victimisation

8.1 We recognise that the decision to report a concern can be a difficult one to make. If
what you are saying is true, or you believe it to be true, you should have nothing to
fear as you will be acting in the best interests of the Council and everyone we provide
a service to.

8.2 We will not tolerate any harassment or victimisation (including informal pressures);
and we will take appropriate action, including disciplinary procedures, to protect you
when you raise a concern which is in the public interest.

8.3 If you make an allegation, which you think is genuine but is not proven, no action will
be taken against you. However, where there is clear evidence that you have made a
malicious allegation then action may be taken against you under the Disciplinary
procedure.

8.4 We want to encourage our staff to put their name to their concerns so we can
investigate them properly. However, some people may wish to remain anonymous. In
these circumstances, we will still consider concerns raised, taking into account the
seriousness of the issues raised and the credibility of the concern, but our ability to
take the matter further may be restricted if anonymity needs to be maintained.

9. Monitoring
9.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance (the Council’s Monitoring Officer), is
responsible for the maintenance and operation of this policy. The Head of Audit and

July 2018 Page 3 of 6



Page 90
APPENDIX 2

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDON

Risk Management will maintain a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in
a form which does not breach your confidentiality) and will report as necessary to the
Council.

9.2 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Audit and Risk
Management will liaise with the Assistant Director of Human Resources when the
policy is subject to review in order to ensure all relevant employment requirements
are taken into account.

WHISTLEBLOWING - GUIDANCE NOTES FOR MANAGERS

When staff suspect or discover something is wrong, they are encouraged to report
this to their manager. This gives managers the chance to correct any potential or
actual malpractice before the issue escalates. Please note that if there are
allegations of potential fraud, or financial irregularity, then these must be reported to
the Head of Audit and Risk Management in line with the Council’s Financial
Regulations.

Victimising or deterring staff from raising legitimate concerns is a serious disciplinary
offence. Whistleblowers are also afforded protection under the Public Interest
Disclosure Act. Therefore, managers must ensure that anyone who makes a
complaint have confidence that it is going to be properly investigated and addressed,;
and they will suffer no detriment as a result of speaking out.

Managers must respect the confidentiality of any staff raising concerns if they (the
staff) want this. However, managers should advise staff that during the investigation
the source of the information may need to be revealed and the individual may be
required to provide a statement, or appear as a witness in any disciplinary or police
investigation. You should advise the employee that they will be supported in these
processes, if required. You should also advise the employee of any other support
processes that are available to them.

In all cases where an employee uses the Council’'s Whistleblowing policy to raise
their concerns, the person receiving the concern must notify the Head of Audit and
Risk Management. They are the Council’s nominated officer for recording any
Whistleblowing referrals and are required to maintain a log, which ensures
confidentiality, and provide periodic information on the use of the Whistleblowing

policy.

July 2018 Page 4 of 6



Page 91
APPENDIX 2

dringe

OFFICIAL LONDON

Investigating Referrals

Managers need to review an employee’s concerns raised under the Whistleblowing

Policy and complete any investigations required as quickly as possible. As a general

guide, within ten working days of the concern being raised, the manager should:

e Formally acknowledge the concern to the employee, or their Trade Union/
professional organisation;

¢ Undertake an initial review of the concerns (or refer the matter to the Head of
Audit and Risk Management where fraud is alleged);

e Appoint an independent and impartial manager to undertake an investigation;

e Agree atimescale to complete the investigation with the investigating manager
and advise the employee, or their representative, of the likely timescale;

e Conduct an investigation under the Whistleblowing Policy, following the same
process as the Disciplinary Procedures for investigating cases of misconduct/
gross misconduct;

e An investigation may conclude that, potentially, there has been a breach of the
Council’'s Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Rules. In these circumstances, you
should invoke the disciplinary process; and

e Subject to any legal constraints, inform the employee, or Trade Union/
professional organisation, of the progress and outcome of any investigation.

Examples of Relevant Prescribed Persons
If you decide to blow the whistle to a ‘prescribed person’ rather than your
employer, the government has produced a Prescribed Persons List.

More information on Whistleblowing can be found on the GOV.UK website:
www.gov.uk/whistleblowing

Examples of prescribed persons include:

Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education, Children’s Services and Skills
(“the Chief Inspector”) about matters relating to the regulation and inspection
of establishment and agencies for children’s social care services.

Ofsted

Piccadilly Gate

Store Street

Manchester M1 2WD

Tel: 0300 123 3155

Email: whistleblowing@ofsted.gov.uk

July 2018 Page 5 of 6


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/431221/bis-15-289-blowing-the-whistle-to-a-prescribed-person-list-of-prescribed-persons-and-bodies-2.pdf
http://www.gov.uk/whistleblowing
mailto:whistleblowing@ofsted.gov.uk

Page 92
APPENDIX 2

haringey

Care Quality Commission about the provision of health care on the NHS or
independent health care services.

CQC National Customer Service Centre

Citygate

Gallowgate

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE1 4PA

Tel: 03000 616161

www.cqc.org.uk

OFFICIAL

The Health and Safety Executive about health or safety at work or the health
and safety of the public.

Health and Safety Executive

Rose Court

2 Southwark Bridge

London

SE1 9HS

Online form: www.hse.gov.uk/contact/workplace-complaint.htm

Tel: 0300 0031647

www.hse.qgov.uk

The Comptroller and Auditor General about the proper conduct of public
business, value for money, fraud and corruption in relation to the provision of
public services.

The Comptroller and Auditor General

National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road

London SW1W 9SP

Tel: 020 7798 7999

www.nao.org.uk/contact-us

July 2018 Page 6 of 6


http://www.cqc.org.uk/
http://www.hse.gov.uk/contact/workplace-complaint.htm
http://www.hse.gov.uk/
http://www.nao.org.uk/contact-us

Page 93 Appendix 4

" Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDDN

Sanctions Policy

1. Policy Statement

1.1 We will use the full range of sanctions available to us, including criminal
prosecution, civil recovery, internal disciplinary procedures and referral to
regulatory bodies in order to deter fraud, bribery and corruption.

1.2 Our Legal Services and the Crown Prosecution Service will be used to
undertake prosecutions; and we will refer all relevant cases to the appropriate
professional bodies and other law enforcement agencies. We will assist
external organisations if they decide to bring their own prosecution cases.

1.3 Our fraud and corruption strategy states that we will seek the full range of
sanctions against anyone found to have committed fraud against the Council:
and they will apply to any fraud either against the Council or against money
that the Council has responsibility for.

2. Deciding what sanction to apply

2.1 We have a range of sanctions that we can use, including internal disciplinary
procedures and criminal and civil prosecutions; and we have this policy to
make sure that we:
e Apply all available sanctions consistently;
e Apply sanctions efficiently and cost effectively; and
e Have a transparent and robust decision making process.

2.2 In some cases, we may apply more than one sanction e.g. if a member of staff
has stolen money from us, we may take internal disciplinary proceedings, refer
the matter to the police, and undertake civil recovery procedures.

2.3 We may decide to pursue a criminal prosecution in some cases; these will
usually be reserved for those cases, which we think, are the most serious. The
Council has the power to undertake some prosecutions itself using our Legal
Services, but some cases can only be decided on by the Crown Prosecution
Service.

2.4 All cases which are considered for prosecution will apply firstly the ‘Evidential
Test’; and secondly the ‘Public Interest Test’, as set out in the Code for Crown
Prosecutors 2013 as follows:

Evidential Test - The investigator will consider the following questions in
assessing whether there is sufficient evidence to prosecute the case: Can the
evidence be used in court? Is the evidence reliable? Is the evidence credible?

July 2018 Page 1 of 3



Page 94
APPENDIX 3

Hdringey

Public Interest Test - If the Evidential Test has been met, the investigator will
then consider whether or not a prosecution would be in the public interest.
Each case will be assessed on its own merits and a review will include: How
serious the offence is; the level of culpability of the suspect; the circumstances
of and the harm caused to the victim; if the suspect was under the age of 18 at
the time of the offence; the impact on the community; whether prosecution is a
proportionate response; and whether sources of information require protecting.

OFFICIAL

3. Types of fraud and the possible sanctions

3.1 Employees, Councillors, Teachers, School Staff
If we find that any of our staff or councillors have committed fraud, or been
involved in corruption, we will undertake disciplinary action in the first instance.
If we identify that the Council has suffered any financial loss, we will always
seek to recover this, including through civil and criminal prosecutions. Where
staff are members of professional bodies, or have to comply with national
codes of conduct (teachers, social care staff etc), we will refer any cases of
fraud and corruption to these bodies.

3.2 Benefit Fraud
The Department for Work and Pensions is responsible for investigating
housing benefits fraud, but the Council is still responsible for assessing and
paying for some benefits including council tax support, and social fund.

3.3 Housing and Right to Buy Fraud
In all cases where anyone has fraudulently applied for Right to Buy, housing
support, or a tenancy from the Council, we will always seek repossession of
the property and recovery of any financial losses. Where we identify that a
tenant is sub-letting their property illegally, we will use the Prevention of Social
Housing Fraud Act 2013 to prosecute them and recover any money they
gained by sub-letting their property. We will also consider using the Fraud Act
2006.

3.4 Other fraud
There are a number of other areas such as: insurance claims, direct care
payments, grants to organisations, exemptions and reliefs from Council Tax or
Non-domestic rate payments, and applications for financial and other
assistance where theft and fraud may occur. We will always seek to recover
any money lost and consider a criminal or civil prosecution. Where an external
organisation is involved, we will make a referral to any relevant governing body
such as the Law Society, Charities Commission, or the Registrar of
Companies.

4. Proceeds of Crime Act 2002
4.1 The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA) was put in place to demonstrate that
crime does not pay. We will use POCA wherever we can to obtain confiscation

July 2018 Page 2 of 3



Page 95
APPENDIX 3

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDON
orders, including compensation orders, as well as recovery of the full
overpayment of benefits. We may use accredited Financial Investigators
attached to other enforcement agencies, or the police, to assist us.

5. Monitoring

5.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance (the Council’'s Monitoring
Officer), is responsible for the maintenance and operation of this policy. The
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Audit and Risk
Management will liaise with the Assistant Director of Human Resources when
the policy is subject to review in order to ensure all relevant employment
requirements are taken into account.

July 2018 Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97 Appendix 5

dringe

OFFICIAL LONDON

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY

1. What is money laundering?

1.1 Money laundering is the term used for several offences involving the proceeds of
crime, or terrorism. This includes possessing, or in any way dealing with, or
concealing, or converting the proceeds of any crime, as well as funds likely to be
used for terrorism and the proceeds of terrorism. Money laundering is used to
describe the activities of criminals who convert the proceeds of crime into legitimate
activities, with the intention of hiding the true sources of their income.

1.2 In relation to the Council, money laundering would be the attempt to do legitimate
business with the Council e.g. buying/leasing property, or paying for goods and
services using assets or money derived from the proceeds of crime or terrorism.

1.3 This policy applies to all employees and councillors and sets out the legal
requirements relating to money laundering, including how to respond if anyone
suspects that money to pay for property, goods, or services comes from criminal, or
terrorist activities.

2. Laws covering money laundering

2.1 Legislation has shifted the burden for identifying acts of money laundering from
police and government agencies to organisations and their employees. The principal
legislation and regulation relating to money laundering are: the Proceeds of Crime
Act 2002 (POCA), the Terrorism Act 2000 (TA), and the Money Laundering
Regulations 2007.

2.2 There are two main types of offences, which may be committed:
e Money laundering offences; and
« Failure to report money-laundering offences.

2.3 The main types of money laundering offences are:
e acquiring, using, or possessing criminal property;
handling the proceeds of crimes, such as theft, fraud and tax evasion;
investing the proceeds of crime in other financial products;
being knowingly involved, in any way, with criminal or terrorist property;
entering into arrangements to facilitate laundering criminal or terrorist property;
transferring criminal property
failing to report a suspicion that money laundering offences are taking place;
and,
« ‘tipping off someone who is, or is suspected of being, involved in money
laundering, in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of being investigated, or
prejudicing an investigation.

July 2018 Page 1 of 5



Page 98
APPENDIX 4

hdringey

2.4 Depending on the severity of the suspected offence, the Magistrates’ Court can
issue fines of up to £5,000, or sentences of up to 6 months in prison (or both), and,
in the Crown Court, fines are unlimited, and sentences of up to 14 years may be
handed down.

OFFICIAL

3. The obligations of the Council

3.1 The main requirements of the legislation are:
e To appoint a Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO);
e Maintain client identification procedures in certain circumstances;
e Implement a procedure to enable suspicions to be reported; and
e Maintain record keeping procedures.

3.2 The Council’'s MLRO is the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance. In the
absence of the designated MLRO, the Head of Audit and Risk Management should
be contacted.

3.3 The Council has developed formal client identification procedures, which must be
followed when Council land or property is being sold. These require individuals (and
companies) to provide proof of identity and current address. If satisfactory evidence
is not obtained, the transaction must not be progressed and guidance should be
sought from the MLRO. All records maintained in respect of suspected money
laundering activity must comply with the Data Protection Act.

4. Examples of potential money laundering situations
4.1 Itis not possible to provide a definitive list of possible situations involving money

laundering; or how to decide whether to report suspicions to the MLRO. However,

the following are risk factors, which either may, individually or cumulatively, suggest

possible money laundering activity:

e Payment of a substantial sum of money in cash (over £10,000), either in a single
transaction, or a number of smaller transactions which total more than £10,000;

e Payment of cash sums where cash is not the usual means of payment;

e A new customer, or use of a new/shell company, with no financial history;

e A customer who refuses to provide requested information without a reasonable
explanation;

e Concerns about the honesty, integrity, location, or identity of a customer;

e Unnecessarily complex transactions e.g. routing or receipt of funds from third
parties, or through third party accounts;

¢ Involvement of an unconnected third party without any reasonable explanation;

e Overpayments by a customer, or payments of deposits subsequently requested
back;

e Absence of an obvious legitimate source of funds;

e Movement of funds overseas, particularly involving a higher risk country, or tax
haven;

e The cancellation, or reversal, of a previous transaction;

e Requests for the release of customer account details, other than in the normal
course of business;

July 2018 Page 2 of 5



5.2

Page 99
APPENDIX 4

dringe

OFFICIAL LONDON

e Transactions at substantially above or below current market values;

e Poor business or financial records;

e A similar previous transaction (completed or requested) from the same customer;
e Aninability to trace the customer, or organisation;

e Individuals or companies that are insolvent but have funds.

Reporting procedure

If you have any questions or doubts about an individual, company, or transaction
that you have been dealing with, then it is important to get advice from the MLRO, or
Head of Audit and Risk Management as soon as possible — do not delay reporting
your concerns, as this may make you subject to criminal prosecution.

Your report to the MLRO should include as much details as possible, including:

e Full details of the people involved e.g. name, address, company name,
directorships, contact details etc;

e Full details of their (and your) involvement;

e The type(s) of money laundering activity suspected;

The date(s) of the suspected money laundering activity, including whether the

transactions have happened, are ongoing, or are imminent;

Where they took place;

How they were undertaken (cash payment, bank transfer etc);

The (likely) amount of money or assets involved;

Why, exactly, you are suspicious.

5.3 Your report should also provide the MLRO with copies of any related supporting

documentation. If you acting in a legal capacity and consider that legal professional
privilege may apply to the information, you should set this out in the report to the
MLRO and why the information is legally privileged. The MLRO will determine
whether the information should be exempt from any reports to the National Crime
Agency (NCA).

5.4 Once you have reported your concerns to the MLRO, you must not undertake any

further enquiries into the matter. The MLRO will refer the matter on to the NCA, if
required, in order for them to undertake further investigation. No further action must
be taken in relation to the transaction(s) until either the MLRO, or NCA, has given
their consent in writing.

5.5 You should not voice any suspicions to the person(s) who you suspect of money

laundering; or make any reference on IT systems, or client/hard copy files that you
have reported your concerns to the MLRO. If an individual requests access to
information, any notes will need to be disclosed, which may tip them off and may
make you liable for prosecution.

5.6 A record will be maintained, including details of the customer due diligence, which

will be kept for five years after the end of the business relationship; together with a
record of the transactions also kept for five years. Guidance on performing the

July 2018 Page 3 of 5



Page 100
APPENDIX 4

dringe

OFFICIAL LONDON

required due diligence checks can be obtained from the Head of Audit and Risk
Management.

6. Review of disclosures by the MLRO
6.1 When the MLRO receives a report of suspected money laundering, they will review
the information and any other relevant information, including:
e Reviewing any other transactions patterns and volumes;
The length of any business relationship involved,
The number of any one-off transactions and any linked one-off transactions;
Any identification evidence held.

6.2 The MLRO will complete their review, which may include speaking to the person
who made the referral, in order to determine whether there is sufficient evidence of
actual/suspected money laundering and whether there are reasonable grounds to
know (or suspect) that this is the case. The MLRO will then determine whether the
NCA needs to be involved and their consent obtained for a transaction to proceed. In
these circumstances, the transaction must not proceed until the NCA consent has
been formally received (or if no consent has been received from the NCA after 7
working days).

6.3 If the MLRO concludes that there are no reasonable grounds to suspect money
laundering, they will record their decision on the report and give their consent to
proceed with the transaction.

6.4 In cases where legal professional privilege may apply, the MLRO will liaise with the
Council’'s s151 Officer to decide whether there is a reasonable reason for not
reporting the matter to the NCA.

7. Additional requirements for Finance and Legal employees

7.1 In addition to the reporting procedure in Section 5 above, employees providing
certain finance and legal services must also comply with ‘due diligence’
requirements:
Simplified due diligence. Required when there is low risk of money laundering e.g.
new business with a company; when checks on company and director registration
details would represent sufficient due diligence.
Enhanced due diligence. Required when there is a higher risk of money laundering
e.g. remote transactions where the customer is not present to be identified would
require additional information and documents to be provided.

If satisfactory evidence cannot be provided, then the transaction cannot proceed.

7.2 Customer identification processes must be undertaken when the Council:
e Forms a business partnership with a customer;

e Undertakes a one-off transaction relating to property or debt of more than
£10,000;

July 2018 Page 4 of 5



Page 101
APPENDIX 4

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.DNDDN

e Undertakes a series of linked transactions involving total payment of more than
£10,000;

e Knows, or suspects, that a transaction or a linked series of transactions involves
money laundering.

7.3 Customer identification must be completed before any business is undertaken with
the individual in relation to accountancy, procurement, audit and legal services with a
financial or real estate transaction. In order to complete customer identification the
following processes should be undertaken:

e |dentify the person who wants to form the business relationship or complete the
transaction;

e Verify their identity using independent sources of information;

¢ |dentify who benefits from the transaction;

e Monitor transactions to make sure that they are consistent with what is
understood about the individual or country;

e Understand the source of their funds;

e Ensure there is a logical reason why they would want to do business with the
Council.

8. Training

8.1 The MLRO and Head of Audit and Risk Management will ensure that training on the
law relating to money laundering and the Council’s procedures is provided to all
relevant employees on a regular and ongoing basis.

9. Monitoring

9.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance (the Council’s Monitoring Officer),
is responsible for the maintenance and operation of this policy. The Assistant
Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Audit and Risk Management will
liaise with the Assistant Director of Human Resources when the policy is subject to
review in order to ensure all relevant employment requirements are taken into
account.

July 2018 Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103 Appendix 6

dringey

OFFICIAL LONDON
Anti-Bribery Policy

1. Policy Statement

1.1The Bribery Act 2010 made bribery a criminal offence. The Council and
everyone employed by us, including members, temporary and agency staff,
consultants and contractors, will not pay bribes or offer improper inducements
to anyone for any purpose. We do not accept bribes or improper inducements.

1.2To use a third party to channel bribes to others is also a criminal offence. We
do not and will not engage indirectly in, or otherwise encourage, bribery.
The Council is committed to the prevention, deterrence and detection of
bribery. We have zero tolerance towards bribery.

2. What is bribery?

2.1Bribery is the offering, promising or giving of a financial or other advantages
designed to induce an individual to take an improper decision or action. These
inducements can take many forms including offering cash, holidays, event
tickets, meals. Decisions could relate to recruitment, the award of contracts,
planning consents and other awards.

2.2 There are four key offences under the 2010 Act:
bribing another person (section 1);
accepting a bribe (section 2);

bribing a foreign official (section 6); and
failing to prevent bribery (section 7).

2.3Failure by a commercial organisation to prevent bribery is a corporate offence.
For the purposes of the Bribery Act 2010, the Council is classed as a
‘commercial organisation’. The Act also introduces an offence of bribing a
foreign official. Individuals found guilty of an offence may be imprisoned for a
maximum term of ten years and face an unlimited fine.

3. Scope of the policy

3.1 This policy provides a coherent and consistent framework to enable all our
employees to understand and implement arrangements to enable compliance
with the Act. In conjunction with related policies and key documents it will also
enable employees to identify and effectively report a potential breach.

3.2This policy applies to all of our activities and staff including all permanent,
temporary and agency staff, contractors, agents, members (including
independent members), volunteers and consultants. For our partners, joint
ventures and suppliers, we will encourage the adoption of policies consistent
with the principles set out in this policy.

4. Our commitment to anti-bribery
4.11n order to comply with the Bribery Act, we will:

July 2018 Page 1 of 3



OFFICIAL

Page 104
APPENDIX 5

Haringe

LONDDN

Set out a clear anti-bribery policy and keep it up to date;

Maintain appropriate procedures to prevent bribery;

Undertake anti-bribery risk assessments where appropriate;

Make all employees aware of their responsibilities to comply with this
policy at all times;

Maintain appropriate gifts and hospitality procedures;

Encourage employees to report any suspicions of bribery;

Investigate instances of alleged bribery and assist the police and other
authorities in their investigations; and

Take a robust line against anyone found to have breached this policy or to
have committed or facilitated bribery.

4.2 As part of our commitment to comply with the Bribery Act, it will be considered
unacceptable to:

give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality with the
expectation or hope that a business advantage will be received, or to
reward a business advantage already given;

give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality to a government
official, agent or representative to ‘facilitate’ or expedite a routine
procedure;

accept payment from a third party that you know, or suspect, is offered
with the expectation that it will obtain a business advantage for them;
accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if you know or suspect that it is
offered or provided with an expectation that a business advantage will be
provided in return;

retaliate against or threaten a person who has refused to commit a bribery
offence or who has raised concerns under this policy; and

engage in activity in breach of this policy.

5. Contracts and failure to prevent bribery

5.1Under the Public Contracts Regulations, a company is automatically barred
from competing for public contracts where it is convicted of a corruption
offence. Companies that are convicted of failing to prevent bribery are not
automatically barred from participating in tenders for public contracts. We
have the discretion to exclude organisations convicted of this offence and you
should get advice from our Procurement team on this issue.

6. Raising a concern

6.1We want everyone who has any concerns to be able to report these
effectively. Our Whistleblowing policy sets out how to do this, including
making an anonymous referral.

7. Monitoring
7.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance (the Council’s Monitoring
Officer), is responsible for the maintenance and operation of this policy. The
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Audit and Risk

July 2018 Page 2 of 3



Page 105
APPENDIX 5

Haringe

OFFICIAL I.ONDON

Management will liaise with the Assistant Director of Human Resources when
the policy is subject to review in order to ensure all relevant employment
requirements are taken into account.

July 2018 Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Statement of Accounts 2017/178 and Audit Findings Report
	8 Annual Internal Audit Report 2017/18
	Annual Internal Audit Report 2017-18 - Appendix Av2

	9 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
	Annual Governace Statement signed

	10 Counter Fraud Update Report 2017/18 - Quarter 4
	CF Update report (Interrnal) Q4 2017-18 Appendix A

	11 Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy
	Anti-fraud and  Corruption Strategy July 2018
	Anti-fraud and corruption Strategy July 2018 - Appendix 1 (fraud response plan)
	Anti-fraud and corruption policy Strategy 2018 - Appendix 2 (whistleblowing policy)
	Anti-fraud and corruption policy Strategy 2018 - Appendix 3 (sanctions policy)
	Anti-fraud and corruption policy Strategy 2018 - Appendix 4 (money laundering)
	Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy July 2018 - Appendix 5 (anti-bribery policy)


